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We are a joint authority consis&ng of 16 elected members appointed by the five Tyne and Wear 

District Councils, established by the Local Government Act 1985. From 9 February 2009, under the 

Local Transport Act, the former Passenger Transport Authority became the Integrated Transport 

Authority.  

 

We act as a strategic and policy making authority on local transport issues within Tyne and Wear, 

and have responsibility for the Tyne Tunnels and delivery of the New Tyne Crossing project.  

 

Our vision for transport in Tyne and Wear 

 

Our vision is that Tyne and Wear will have a fully integrated and sustainable transport network, 

allowing everyone the opportunity to achieve their full poten&al and have a high quality of life. 

Our strategic networks will support the efficient movement of people and goods within and 

beyond Tyne and Wear, and a comprehensive network of pedestrian, cycle and passenger 

transport links will ensure that everyone has access to employment, training, community services 

and facili&es.  

 

The five goals of the transport strategy we have adopted to meet this vision are: 

• To support the economic development, regenera&on and compe&&veness of Tyne and 

Wear, improving the efficiency, reliability and integra&on of transport networks across all 

modes 

• To reduce carbon emissions produced by local transport movements, and to strengthen our 

networks against the effects of climate change and extreme weather events 

• To contribute to healthier and safer communi&es in Tyne and Wear, with higher levels of 

physical ac&vity and personal security 

• To create a fairer Tyne and Wear, providing everyone with the opportunity to achieve their 

full poten&al and access a wide range of employment, training, facili&es and services 

• To protect, preserve and enhance our natural and built environments, improving quality of 

life and crea&ng high quality public places 

What is the Tyne and 

Wear Integrated  

Transport Authority? 



2 

 



3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As we approach the new financial year, I would like to take &me to reflect on the early years of our 

delivery of the ITA’s ten year strategy up to 2021. Despite financial pressures and &ghtening 

budgets, we have been able to deliver major projects and smaller scale improvements to the 

transport network in Tyne and Wear through focused financial and project management. 

 

The New Tyne Crossing (NTC) has improved connec&vity on both sides of the Tyne and greatly 

improved journey &mes for the travelling public and businesses. I have been par&cularly delighted 

to see that the hard work of the ITA and its partners has been recognised with awards that 

reinforce the benefits of a project funded by the ITA and its partners. The NTC con&nues to win 

awards and commenda&ons including Project of the Year accolade at the Royal Ins&tu&on of 

Chartered Surveyors North East Renaissance Awards and Ins&tute of Civil Engineering Robert 

Stephenson Award 2012. We have also started work to improve the experience of cyclists and 

pedestrians with a £4.9m refurbishment of the Grade II listed Tyne Pedestrian and Cyclist Tunnels. 

 
The reinvigora&on of the Metro system con&nues with pace. Up to the end of the financial year 

2012/13 we have: 

• repaired or replaced 18.5km of track; 

• refurbished 21 Metro-cars; 

• refurbished and modernised 10 sta&ons; and 

• replaced 8 escalators and 4 liGs. 

 

Nexus, the ITA’s Passenger Transport Execu&ve, has sustained and created hundreds of jobs in the 

local economy through this investment, including 60 new posi&ons within the organisa&on. The 

renewal of the Metro system is high profile, and we are all under pressure to deliver the 

programme to &me and budget from the public, our partners and stakeholders, yet sa&sfac&on 

scores from the public s&ll remain very good (80% sa&sfied with condi&on of sta&ons, 87% 

sa&sfied with punctuality and 87% sa&sfied with reliability in 2012/13). 

 

We have consistently met the targets set by the Government and have proven our ability to deliver 

challenging and complicated engineering projects within forecast budgets. The Government’s 

confirma&on of funding in full for the £93m we sought to con&nue modernisa&on from 2013 to 

2016 is based on an appraisal of our performance to date. It is a clear indica&on of the 

performance of Nexus in delivering this project on the ITA’s behalf. 

 

2012/13 has also seen the public transport network in Tyne and Wear make significant progress 

towards becoming fully ‘smart’. Smartcard validators and 225 new &cket machines have been 

installed across all 60 Metro sta&ons. Thirteen Metro sta&ons will have been fiKed with &cket 

gates by the end of 2013.  

 

 

Chairman’s Foreword 

and Introduction 

2012/13 
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Chairman’s Foreword and Introduc(on 

The change to use of our ‘Pop’ transport smartcard is gathering pace and Nexus has now issued 

more than 15,000 smartcards to passengers. The introduc&on of smart &cke&ng makes it easier 

and more convenient for passengers to use public transport in Tyne and Wear and it is excellent to 

know that uptake is increasing rapidly. 

 

In 2012/13 we have worked with our partners to secure investment from the Government for 

schemes which aim to reduce conges&on, boost economic growth and improve safety. These 

include: 

• the A1 Western Bypass, Lobley Hill Improvements; 

• A1/A1231 (Wessington Way) scheme in Sunderland; and 

• A1/A19 Seaton Burn improvements. 

 

We have also been delivering behaviour change programmes across Tyne and Wear (with links into 

Northumberland) as part of our Go Smarter campaign. The Schools Go Smarter programme of 

walking, cycling, road safety and public transport ini&a&ves has been developed from funding 

secured as part of a compe&&ve bidding process. The programme con&nues to be delivered at 

schools across Tyne and Wear, helping to reduce road conges&on and carbon dioxide emissions, 

while helping to improve peoples' health. 

 

In September 2012 we secured a further £5m to deliver the Go Smarter to Work programme. We 

are currently in the process of implemen&ng this delivery, which involves targe&ng individuals who 

work at key employment sites across four areas, in order to reduce conges&on on the A1 Western 

Bypass. This will focus on enabling people to access the employment areas by sustainable travel. In 

future years Go Smarter to Work will also include improvements to cycle parking at Metro Sta&ons 

across Tyne and Wear, and other planned interven&ons. 

 

Further ‘BeKer Bus Area’ funding of £4.9m, has allowed us to take forward other projects that help 

ensure buses remain an aKrac&ve mode of travel for the public. Working in partnership with bus 

operators and our local authority partners we have introduced infrastructure improvements and 

also maximised campaigns on &cke&ng offers such as the Day Rover, which saw an associated 

169% rise in sales. Other investment in buses has included suppor&ng a bid to government for an 

extra hybrid vehicle to improve frequency on the successful Sunderland Connect city centre 

service. 

 

Finally, the range of investment we have been managing and securing for the present does not 

stop us considering the needs of the future. There are changes taking place regarding the future 

funding of Major Schemes which will be devolved to Local Transport Bodies (LTBs), from 2015. The 

LTBs will have the power to determine which investments are funded. TWITA is well placed to help 

priori&se transport investments and, as full vo&ng members of the North East Local Transport 

Body (NELTB), we look forward to making a significant contribu&on to the process in the coming 

months. 

 
As we move forward, I am confident that the work we have undertaken in this year will lead to 

future successes in developing an integrated and accessible transport network for all who live, 

visit, and work in Tyne and Wear. 

 

Councillor David Wood 

Chair of Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport Authority 
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The Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority (ITA) manages its affairs to ensure the 

economic, efficient and effec&ve use of its resources and to safeguard its assets. This is vital if the 

ITA is to con&nue to play a leading role in the provision of quality public transport services 

throughout the Tyne and Wear area.  

 

This task is shared by all members and officers of the Authority. The Treasurer has a par&cular role 

in ensuring sound financial stewardship. 

 

This statement of accounts has been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Prac&ce on 

Local Authority Accoun&ng in Great Britain which requires that the accounts present a true and fair 

view of the posi&on of the Authority. Suitable accoun&ng policies have been employed and where 

necessary prudent judgements and es&mates were made which complied with the Code.  

 

The purpose of this foreword is to provide the reader with: 

• An understanding of the accoun&ng statements; 

• A review of the Authority’s financial results in 2012/13 and its financial posi&on; and 

• An overview of ac&vi&es and significant maKers which occurred during the year.  

 

Background to the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority’s Finances 

 

The Authority’s main source of income is the levy applied to the five cons&tuent local authori&es 

of the ITA based upon popula&on. The other major source of income is tolls paid by users of the 

Tyne Tunnels, which are used to fund the opera&on of the Tunnels and the financing of the New 

Tyne Crossing project.  

 

The levy for 2012/13 amounted to £70.207m, distributed between the Districts as set out in the 

chart below:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Explanatory      

Foreword by the 

Treasurer 

District Levy 2012/13 (£m) 

Gateshead £12.021 

Newcastle £18.323 

North Tyneside £12.447 

South Tyneside £9.638 

Sunderland £17.778 

Total £70.207 
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2012/13 Outturn

Grant to Nexus

Pensions

Financing Charge s

Interest on Revenue

Balances

ITA Support

Administration &

Governance

Explanatory Foreword by the Treasurer  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The major item of ITA expenditure is a revenue grant paid to Nexus, the Passenger Transport 

Execu&ve. This supports concessionary travel, the Metro, other bus and rail services, bus 

infrastructure and the Tyne Ferry. Expenditure for the year on the ITA’s retained element of the 

levy was £3.422m against a budget of £3.448m.  

 

The lead authority for the ITA is Newcastle City Council. It provides administra&ve, engineering, 

financial, legal and other advisory services directly to the Authority under a Service Level 

Agreement. Further expenditure is incurred by the ITA on costs rela&ng to governance and 

administra&on, financing charges rela&ng to principal and interest payments on inherited debts 

and grant to Nexus and the Tyne and Wear Districts, and superannua&on contribu&ons in respect 

of the ITA’s obliga&ons for the pensions of former employees.  

 

The ITA owns the Tyne Tunnels which link the A19 under the River Tyne between Howdon and 

Jarrow. There are two tolled vehicle tunnels, and tunnels for both pedestrians and cyclists. The 

Tunnels are en&rely self-financing from the tolls, i.e. there is no call on the levy to support them. 

The Tunnels are operated under a contract to a concessionaire company TT2 Ltd and appear within 

the accounts as a trading func&on. Tolls on vehicles are also used to fund the works required for 

the New Tyne Crossing.  

 

The New Tyne Crossing is a major construc&on project that began in 2008, to provide a new tunnel 

alongside the exis&ng one. The new tunnel was completed and opened in February 2011, and the 

old tunnel was closed for refurbishment. The newly refurbished tunnel opened ahead of schedule 

in November 2011, so for the first &me there are two vehicle tunnels available. The new tunnel 

carries two lanes of southbound traffic and the exis&ng tunnel carries two lanes of northbound 

traffic. Further informa&on about the project is given in the New Tyne Crossing review on pages 19 

to 23.  

£66.922m 

£3.423m £0.283m 

£0.153m 

£0.455m 

£2.533m 
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Explanatory Foreword by the Treasurer  

Analysis of Revenue Expenditure Against Budget - ITA 

 

The table below compares actual spend against the revised budget for 2012/13 agreed in January 

2013, and shows actual figures for 2011/12 to provide comparison across years.  

Overall spending for 2012/13 was within budget, with small varia&ons on some individual budget 

lines. Savings were made on controllable budgets such as supplies and services. A saving was made 

on the SLA with the lead authority as a result of staffing changes, with the ITA Treasurer serving as 

Ac&ng Clerk from September 2012. This saving was ringfenced and used to fund addi&onal policy 

support to the ITA for work on major schemes devolu&on.  

 

The final posi&on is a use of ITA General reserve of £0.137m, compared with the revised budget of 

£0.163m. This is also considerably lower than the original budget for the year which es&mated use 

of reserves of £0.191m. The underspend for 2012/13 will be added to the 2013/14 budget and 

used to fund addi&onal professional support for issues such as the poten&al move to Combined 

Authority arrangements and the Bus Strategy Delivery Project.  

 

Budget Heading 2011/12 

Actual 

£000 

2012/13 

Budget 

£000 

2012/13 

Actual 

£000 

Variance 

£000 

Service Level Agreement and staffing charges 284 286 281 (5) 

Audit Fees 30 20 18 (2) 

Members Allowances and Expenses 80 86 82 (4) 

Local Government Associa&on Subscrip&on 31 30 30 - 

Conferences and Travel Expenses 7 4 3 (1) 

Website Costs 22 10 12 2 

Supplies and Services 14 19 8 (11) 

Payments to Pension Fund 432 455 455 - 

Financing Charges 2,733 2,568 2,568 - 

Interest on investments and revenue balances (83) (30) (35) (5) 

Total ITA Opera(ng Expenses 3,550 3,448 3,422 (26) 

Grant to Nexus 70,323 66,922 66,922 - 

Total ITA Expenditure 73,873 70,370 70,344 (26) 

        

Levy Income (73,792) (70,207) (70,207) - 

      

Transfer from ITA General Fund Reserve 81 163 137 (26) 

Explanatory Foreword by the Treasurer  
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Explanatory Foreword by the Treasurer  

Analysis of Revenue Expenditure against Budget - Tyne Tunnels 

 

The vehicle tunnel has been open for more than forty years, with traffic numbers having increased 

substan&ally since then. In 2012/13 the traffic level was 14.4m vehicles, corresponding to a total 

toll income of £19.869m aGer adjus&ng for prepayments (compared with £14.886m in 2011/12). In 

line with the financing strategy for the New Tyne Crossing, tolls were increased on 1 January 2013 

to £1.60 for cars and small vans and £2.50 for lorries and large vans (with a ten percent discount 

for permit holders). The toll increase did not have an adverse effect on traffic levels which showed 

a 14% increase compared to 2011/12.  

 

In February 2008, the Tunnels were passed over to TT2 Ltd who will operate them as 

concessionaire un&l 2037. TT2 Ltd also managed the construc&on of the new Tunnel completed in 

February 2011 and the refurbishment of the exis&ng Tunnel, completed in November 2011.  

 

The table below details expenditure within the ringfenced Tyne Tunnels trading account and 

compares it against actual ouKurn for 2011/12 and the budget for 2012/13.   

 

Although there were variances on some individual items, the overall surplus was largely in line 

with the budgeted posi&on. The net deficit on Tunnels Opera&ng costs was £0.868m, against the 

revised budget agreed in January 2013 of £1.405m deficit. £0.413m of expenditure on NESTI has 

been financed in year from Tunnel Reserves. This reflects the fact that in 2009/10, grant was 

received by the twelve North East Local Authori&es, Nexus and the ITA and this grant was applied 

to finance capital expenditure on the New Tyne Crossing in that year. An equivalent total amount 

(£7.178m in total) of capital and revenue expenditure was therefore to be funded from Tunnel 

Reserves.   

 

  2011/12 

Actual 

£000 

2012/13 

Budget 

£000 

2012/13 

Actual 

£000 

Variance 

  

£000 
Employees 34 33 31 (2) 

Pensions 499 525 526 1 

Supplies and Services and Other Expenses 45 50 34 (16) 

Support Services 145 130 108 (22) 

Community Fund 18 10 8 (2) 

Financing Charges 5,530 6,637 6,622 (15) 

Toll Income (14,886) (19,700) (19,869) (169) 

Usage Payments 6,522 14,130 13,986 (144) 

Other Income (4) - (110) (110) 

Interest on Investments and Tunnel Balances (774) (460) (517) (57) 

Total Tunnels Opera(ng Costs (2,871) 1,405 868 (537) 

       

NESTI Expenditure financed from Tunnel Reserves 1,886 - 413 413 

(Surplus) / Deficit transferred to Tyne Tunnels General 

Fund Reserve 

(985) 1,405 1,281 (124) 

Cost of Official Opening Ceremony - 50 49 (1) 
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Explanatory Foreword by the Treasurer  

Reserves 

The chart below shows the level of ITA and Tyne Tunnels reserves from 2007/08 to 2012/13.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In line with the three-year Medium Term Financial Strategy, some use of reserves has been made 

to support ITA expenditure while significant reduc&ons have been made to the levy.  

 

Tyne Tunnel reserves which increased significantly during the construc&on period are now 

beginning to be reduced as payments to the concessionaire have stepped up following final 

comple&on and provisions for the repayment of pruden&al borrowing are increasing.  

 

Treasury Management 

At 31 March 2013, the ITA had £18m of investments with external financial ins&tu&ons, which are 

held on behalf of Nexus. There is a further £10m debtor with Newcastle City Council for monies 

held at the year end in the lead authority's name which are owed to the ITA and repayable to 

Nexus. The ITA’s own cash balances are invested with the lead authority, Newcastle City Council, 

providing an extremely low-risk return on balances. The average rate of interest paid on loans in 

the year was 4.25% and the average interest received on balances was 1.20%.  

 

The ITA has £202.89m of long term borrowing and £4.69m short term borrowing carried on its 

balance sheet. This is made up of loans taken out to finance the New Tyne Crossing Construc&on, 

plus historic capital supported borrowing, where the Districts receive government funding but the 

debt is held by the ITA. 

  2011/12 

£000 
2012/13 

£000 
Movement 

£000 
General Fund       

ITA (2,519) (2,382) 137 

Tyne Tunnels (41,757) (40,477) 1,281 

Earmarked Reserves     

Metro Reinvigora&on (14,357) (12,325) 2,032 

Total (58,633) (55,182)  

£2.382m 

£40.477m 
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Explanatory Foreword by the Treasurer  

Capital Expenditure 

 

Capital Expenditure has been incurred in 2012/13 in rela&on to the New Tyne Crossing Project and 

the refurbishment of the Tyne Pedestrian and Cycle Tunnel. There has been further capital 

expenditure on payment of capital grants to the Tyne and Wear Districts and Nexus.  

 

In addi&on to the capital expenditure shown within the ITA’s own accounts, Nexus have also 

invested £47.3m in the Metro Asset Renewal Plan (ARP) and Metro Ticke&ng and Ga&ng 

programmes. A summary of expenditure against the ITA’s (non-Nexus) capital programme is set out 

in the table below:  

 

New Tyne Crossing 
Following the comple&on of the construc&on works on the New Tyne Crossing, the capital 

programme is significantly lower than in recent years. Final comple&on of the construc&on 

programme was signed off by the Independent Cer&fier on 31 January 2013. Expenditure in 

2012/13 related to remaining environmental works and environmental monitoring, professional 

fees for work towards achieving final comple&on and sePng the final concession toll, and costs 

associated with land transfer work.  

 

In addi&on, expenditure was incurred on preliminary works and professional fees on the Tyne 

Pedestrian and Cycle Tunnels refurbishment project. The majority of the works on this project will 

take place in 2013/14 when the Tunnels will be temporarily closed to the public to allow for the 

removal of two escalators, installa&on of two inclined liGs and the complete replacement of all 

Mechanical and Electrical systems.  

 2011/12 2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 

  Actual 

£000 

Budget 

£000 
Actual 

£000 
Variance 

£000 

New Tyne Crossing 48,132 600  682 82  

Tyne Pedestrian and Cycle Tunnel 

Refurbishment 
423 750 402 (348) 

Total Tunnels Capital Programme 48,555 1,350 1,084 (266) 

      

Local Transport Plan     

Integrated Transport Block Grant to Districts 9,452 8,509 8,509 - 

ARP/Public Transport Schemes Alloca&on 1,610 6,593 6,292 (301) 

Total LTP 11,062 15,102 14,801 (301) 

      

Other Capital Grants     

Local Sustainable Transport Fund 198 747 302 (445) 

BeKer Bus Area Fund  - 2,600 2,262 (338) 

     

North East Smart Ticke(ng Ini(a(ve     

Capital Payments to Nexus 1,776 4,416 3,235 (1,181) 
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Explanatory Foreword by the Treasurer  

Local Transport Plan (LTP) Integrated Transport Block 

LTP Integrated Transport Block funding is capital grant awarded to the ITA by DfT. The ITA allocates 

this funding between the five Tyne and Wear Districts and Nexus, with a propor&on being 

ringfenced to provide support to the Metro Asset Renewal Programme (ARP) and other public 

transport related schemes. ITA-funded expenditure on Metro ARP was significantly higher than in 

2011/12, since the works were funded 100% by DfT last year, with an increased local contribu&on 

required in 2012/13.  

 

Local Sustainable Transport Fund  

2012/13 was the second year of the Schools Go Smarter programme, which commenced in 

autumn 2011. The 2012/13 capital budget of £0.477m related primarily to the purchase of vehicles 

for parking enforcement, and the school links and school grants workstreams. School grants 

provides funding for bike sheds, to provide safe places for pupils to store their bicycles, and other 

works including new paths, pool bikes and tools. School links funds infrastructure work in the 

Districts making it easier to cycle or walk to school, such as upgrading cycle paths or installing new 

pedestrian crossings.  

 

In September 2012, the ITA was informed that it had been successful in its revised bid for further 

Local Sustainable Transport Fund grant to support the ‘Go Smarter to Work’ programme. The grant 

was received from DfT in December 2012. Capital works are focused around infrastructure 

investments, implemen&ng the physical infrastructure work necessary to make cycle, walking and 

public transport trips a more aKrac&ve alterna&ve to car use; and improved informa&on including 

use of open data sources and Real Time Passenger Informa&on (RTPI) to enable the transport user 

to access more reliable and up-to-date details of transport services.  

 

Be5er Bus Area Fund 

In April 2012, the ITA received no&ce that it had been successful in its applica&on for DfT BeKer 

Bus Area funding, including £3.889m capital grant. The project is aimed at improving journey &mes 

on key bus routes, to improve the aKrac&veness of buses to the travelling public. The capital grant 

will be used primarily for the procurement and installa&on of equipment including CCTV, 

Automa&c Number Plate Recogni&on and co-ordina&on of traffic signal installa&ons. In addi&on, 

infrastructure works are taking place on a number of key bus routes. Works will be completed and 

the remaining grant paid out to districts in 2013/14.  

 

North East Smart Ticke(ng Ini(a(ve (NESTI) 

The ITA acts as accountable body for NESTI which is a programme of investment in smart &cke&ng 

infrastructure across the north east. The programme is governed via a collabora&on agreement 

which was entered into by all 12 local authori&es in the region plus the ITA and Nexus. The ITA 

holds the funding on behalf of the authori&es, and the remaining budget of £4.879m is shown on 

the ITA’s balance sheet as Grants Received in Advance (see Note 14 to the accounts, p. 54).  

 

The ouKurn for 2012/13 was £3.325m, with main highlights during the year being the beginning of 

the implementa&on of solu&ons to enable remote uploading of stored travel rights, the 

contribu&on towards the Ticke&ng and Ga&ng plaQorm validator installa&ons and a back-office 

upgrade required to support the scheme.  
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Explanatory Foreword by the Treasurer  

Financing of Capital Expenditure 2012/13 

 

The vast majority of the Capital Programme is now funded by government grant awarded to the 

ITA by DfT.  Expenditure on NESTI was funded through contribu&ons held by the ITA on behalf of 

the 12 North East Local Authori&es, and revenue contribu&ons from Tyne Tunnels reserves. 

Expenditure on the New Tyne Crossing was funded by Pruden&al Borrowing in line with the long 

term financing strategy for this project.  

 

The table and chart below show the financing of the ITA’s capital programme in 2012/13.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Funding 2012/13 (£000) 

Pruden&al Borrowing 1,084 

Central Government Grants 17,365 

NESTI Contribu&ons 2,822 

Capital Expenditure Funded from Revenue 413 

Total 21,684 

2012/13 (%) 

5% 

80% 

13% 

2% 

100% 
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Explanatory Foreword by the Treasurer  

Pension Liabili(es 

 

The ITA is a member of the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund, which is part of the Local Government 

Pension Scheme. This is a scheme which provides defined benefits based on members’ final 

pensionable salary. In the ITA’s accounts, a liability for future pension costs is recognised on the 

Balance Sheet, and pension contribu&ons are charged against the General Fund (i.e. funded from 

the levy and tolls).  

 

The figure presented in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different to the 

actual contribu&ons charged against the General Fund. This is because it is prepared on an 

Interna&onal Accoun&ng Standard 19 (IAS 19) basis. Under IAS 19, the ITA is required to disclose 

the total value of all pension payments that have accumulated (including deferred pensions) at 31 

March each year. This value is made up of: 

• The total cost of pensions that are being paid out to former employees who have re&red  

• The total sum of the pension en&tlements earned to date for current employees 

 

The standard also requires all investments (assets) of the Pension Fund to be shown at their 

market value at 31 March each year. In reality, the value of such investments fluctuates on a day-

to-day basis, but this is ignored for the purpose of the accoun&ng standard. Comparing the value 

of all future pension payments and the value of investments at 31 March results in an overall 

surplus or deficit for the Pension Fund. This is called the IAS 19 surplus or deficit.  

 

At 31 March 2013, actuaries have es&mated that the IAS 19 deficit is £8.250m. This compares with 

an equivalent figure in the 2011/12 accounts of £6.730m. The main reason for the increase is a 

reduc&on in the discount rate used in the calcula&on of the present value of the future payments 

required, from 4.6% at 31 March 2012 to 4.1% at 31 March 2013. The discount rate is required for 

IAS 19 purposes to be based on the yield on high quality long term corporate bonds, which have 

fallen since 31 March 2012. A lower discount rate results in a higher present value being placed on 

the future cashflows, and the liability has therefore increased. 

 

The IAS 19 deficit has to be disclosed in the accounts, but there will be no change to the actual 

contribu&ons due to be paid to the Pension Fund in 2013/14. These contribu&ons are calculated 

following the detailed triennial Pension Fund valua&on, the next valua&on date being 31 March 

2013 and the results to be announced during the next year. The IAS 19 valua&on is only a snapshot 

at a given point in &me, whereas the detailed triennial valua&on assesses the ongoing posi&on of 

the Pension Fund, and is used to review contribu&on rates to the Fund from employers to ensure 

that exis&ng assets and future contribu&ons will be sufficient to meet future pension payments.  

 

The ITA Treasurer is currently considering strategies for the reduc&on of the pension deficit, which 

could include using Tyne Tunnels reserves to pay off some or all of the deficit, since these reserves 

are not currently aKrac&ng significant levels of interest income. This would give an annual saving 

on the revenue budget. However, key to this will be the &ming of any such payment since the 

pension liabili&es are sensi&ve to movements in the markets and will fluctuate during the year. 

Work on this will con&nue during 2013/14 with the advice of the pension fund and professional 

actuaries.  
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Explanatory Foreword by the Treasurer  

Looking ahead to 2013/14 and beyond 

 

The public sector financial environment remains extremely challenging, and this affects the ITA and 

Nexus along with all local authori&es in the region. 2013/14 marked the final year of the medium 

term financial strategy agreed in January 2011 which has seen a significant reduc&on in the levy 

with savings passed to the local authori&es. A cash freeze posi&on was agreed for 2013/14, in 

recogni&on of the need to establish a firm funding base pending a decision on most appropriate 

means of delivering the ITA’s ambi&ons for the Bus Strategy Delivery Project. Work will be 

con&nuing during the year to iden&fy further savings and efficiencies wherever possible.  

 

The issue of Concessionary Travel Funding con&nues to be extremely challenging for the Tyne and 

Wear region. Cuts to the overall level of funding available na&onally combined with a system of 

appor&onment that does not recognise the high level of pass take up and usage in our region 

means that the funding gap is significant and growing. The ITA and Nexus will con&nue to work 

with PTEG and other areas of the country to lobby strongly for these issues to be addressed, in 

order that we can con&nue to provide valuable public transport services which are essen&al to the 

wellbeing of the people who live and work in Tyne and Wear.  

 

In early 2013, the leaders of Durham, Gateshead, Newcastle, Northumberland, North Tyneside, 

South Tyneside and Sunderland Councils expressed their inten&on to launch a governance review 

process to consider op&ons for working more closely as a region on economic growth, skills and 

transport. The governance review process is now nearing conclusion and the leadership board 

an&cipate issuing a draG scheme to central government in July for the establishment of a formal 

Combined Authority across the seven authority footprint. Under the legisla&on, the exis&ng Tyne 

and Wear ITA would be dissolved, with its func&ons and responsibili&es transferring to the new 

body.  Since the rights, assets and liabili&es of the ITA will transfer to the new authority, it is 

appropriate for these accounts to be prepared on a going concern basis.  

 

ITA members and officers and officers from Nexus will be closely involved with the work to 

establish a poten&al new Combined Authority, to ensure that the ambi&ons and objec&ves of the 

ITA are at the heart of the new arrangements.   
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Explanatory Foreword by the Treasurer  

ITA Accounts 

 

The ITA Accounts for 2012/13 are set out in sec(on 2. These consist of the following statements, 

along with notes to each: 

 

Movement in Reserves Statement 

This statement shows the movement in year on the different reserves held by the Authority, 

analysed into Usable Reserves (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce the 

levy) and Unusable Reserves. The surplus or deficit on the provision of services line shows the true 

economic cost in accoun&ng terms of providing the ITA’s services, more details of which are shown 

in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory 

amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for the purposes of sePng the levy. 

The net increase or decrease before transfers to earmarked reserves line shows the statutory 

General Fund Balance before any discre&onary transfers to or from earmarked reserves 

undertaken by the Authority.  

 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This statement shows the accoun&ng cost in year of providing services in accordance with 

generally accepted accoun&ng prac&ces, rather than the amount to be funded from the levy. 

Integrated Transport Authori&es raise a levy to cover expenditure in accordance with regula&ons; 

this may be different from the accoun&ng cost. The levy posi&on is shown in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement.  

 

Balance Sheet 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabili&es 

recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabili&es) are matched by 

the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories: Usable Reserves (i.e. 

those which the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent 

level) and Unusable Reserves (i.e. those which the Authority is not able to use to provide services). 

This category of reserves includes those that hold unrealised gains and losses (e.g. the Revalua&on 

Reserve) where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; 

and reserves that hold &ming differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line 

“adjustments between accoun&ng basis and funding basis under regula&on”. 

 

Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the change in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during 

the repor&ng period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash 

equivalents by classifying cash flows from opera&ng, inves&ng and financing ac&vi&es. The amount 

of net cash flows arising from opera&ng ac&vi&es is a key indicator of the extent to which cash 

ouQlows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future 

service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing ac&vi&es are useful in predic&ng claims on 

future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.  

 

Group Accounts 

The Group Accounts provide the same informa&on as above, but incorporate the Nexus accounts 

within the figures. Notes to the Group Accounts provide further detail to items which are 

materially different in the Group Accounts to the single en&ty ITA accounts.  
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Project Director’s Review of Progress in 2012/13 

 

The concession contract was signed on 23 November 2007, and the staff and opera&on of the 

Tunnels transferred to the concessionaire, TT2 Ltd. on 1 February 2008. The financial year 2012/13 

was the fiGh full year of the contract with TT2, which has a thirty year term.  

 

Opera(ons 

The average weekday traffic volume through the tunnels rose from 45,000 vehicles per day to 

48,000 vehicles per day over the financial year 2012/13. Journey &mes have remained consistent 

and delay free. The toll plazas and other systems are automated and are overseen by the Control 

Room.  

 

On 28th June, the North East of England experienced excep&onal rainfall condi&ons which led to 

widespread disrup&on to the Region’s transport infrastructure network. The intensity of the 

rainfall was such that the north-bound tunnel had to be completely closed and the south-bound 

tunnel was restricted to one lane. It took TT2 three hours to pump out the water from the north-

bound tunnel sufficiently to be able to open it again to traffic. TT2 have since reviewed the 

drainage systems in the catchment area near the north-bound portal and toll plaza and modified 

the drainage systems in the catchment area near the north-bound portal and toll plaza and 

modified the ditch and drainage configura&ons to help prevent any repe&&on. This proved to be 

effec&ve in the subsequent heavy rainfalls in August, September and December 2012. 

 

The performance of TT2 is monitored on a daily basis by TWITA’s Monitoring Officer who is based 

at the Tyne Tunnels. There was no requirement to apply any penalty deduc&ons and TT2 Ltd’s 

opera&onal performance for the year is classed as ‘very good’. This is the fiGh consecu&ve year TT2 

has achieved this ra&ng.  

 

There was a modifica&on to the toll charge regime using the Transi&onal Tolling powers in the 

River Tyne (Tunnels) Order 2005. The tolls for cars were raised from £1.40 to £1.60 and for HGVs 

from £2.00 to £2.50. The change came into effect on 1 January 2013 and was the second increase 

using these powers since the New Tyne Crossing became full opera&onal on 21 November 2011. 

The 10% discount for permit holders remains and take-up of the permit accounts has risen 

significantly since 2011 in response to the transi&onal toll increases.  

 

Construc(on 

With the commissioning of the New Tyne Crossing on 21 November 2011, there was rela&vely liKle 

ac&vity in 2012/13. There were a small number of items outstanding, however, and these 

included: 

1. Landscaping—par&cularly in Jarrow; 

2. OuQall to the River Tyne through the Howdon Yard; 

New Tyne Crossing  

Project Review of    

2012/13 



20 

 

New Tyne Crossing Review 

3. Resurfacing to the approach roads on the North Bank between the A193 junc&on and the 

Metro Bridge; 

4. Minor modifica&on work to the Variable Message Sign gantries on the A19 approaches both 

north and south; 

5. Installa&on of a small number of grout screens in the Howdon Yard to the new tunnel’s west 

side wall. 

 

Environmental Monitoring 

All monitoring associated with the construc&on of the New Tyne Crossing ceased in 2012. 

Development of a fish-pass at Hexham—an obliga&on on TWITA arising from the 2003 Agreement 

with the Tyne Riparian Owners and Occupiers Associa&on—is con&nuing. This development work 

is being done by the Tyne River Trust in liaison with the Environment Agency and the Hexham 

Community Hydro Project. No programme for the fish-pass works has been published, pending the 

submission of an applica&on for, and the gran&ng of, the appropriate Planning Permission either as 

an independent scheme or as part of the Hexham Community Hydro Project.  

 

Land 

All areas of land occupied temporarily for the construc&on works have now been handed back. 

Way-leaves and easements for public u&lity apparatus lying in Tyne Tunnel land have been draGed 

and have been executed. Bilton Hall Bridge is yet to be formally handed back to the Highways 

Agency—the report of the independent technical consultant who has been commissioned to 

review the efficacy of the works carried out to the bridge by the NTC main contractor is awaited. 

TWITA has received over 200 claims under Part 1 of the Land Compensa&on Act 1973. These 

claims are now being processed with the assistance of TT2 as required by the Project Agreement.  
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Communica(ons 

The major event in 2012/13 was the formal opening of the New Tyne Crossing by HM The Queen 

accompanied by HRH The Duke of Edinburgh on 18 July 2012. The Queen delivered a short speech 

in which she commented how delighted she was to return to the Tyne Tunnel and noted that the 

second tunnel had transformed the lives of motorists in the region for the beKer. This event 

aKracted widespread coverage in the local media.  

 

The New Tyne Crossing website was re-modelled to act as a historical record of the planning, 

development and construc&on of the New Tyne Crossing.  

 

A book on the development and construc&on of the Tyne Tunnels was published in December 

2012, and is available for purchase by the general public.  

 

The project was the recipient of the following pres&gious awards in 2012/13: 

• Construc&ng Excellence in the North East: Value Award 

• Ins&tu&on of Civil Engineers: Robert Stephenson Award (Special) 

• Bri&sh Construc&on Industry Awards: Major Civil Engineering Project for the Year 2012 (over 

£50m) 

• Construc&ng Excellence: Na&onal Award for Value 

• Royal Ins&tu&on of Chartered Surveyors: North East Renaissance Award for Infrastructure 

• Royal Ins&tu&on of Chartered Surveyors: North East Project of the Year  
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Tyne Pedestrian and Cyclist Tunnels (TPCT) 

Tenders for the major refurbishment of these tunnels were returned to TWITA on 3 September 

2012. The tenders were evaluated and reported to TWITA on 12 October 2012. Following detailed 

clarifica&ons rela&ng to technical and insurance issues the LeKer of Award for the contract for the 

Phase 3 Improvement Works was issued to GB Building Solu&ons Ltd on 28 March 2013. Site set-up 

ac&vi&es started on 7 May 2013 and the works started on 20 May with the Tunnels closing to the 

public on this date. A ShuKle Bus service contract has been awarded to Priory Coaches Ltd to 

effec&vely maintain the link for Pedestrians and Cyclists across the River Tyne between 0600 and 

2000, 7 days per week. Outside these hours, TWITA was aware of the difficul&es that the closure of 

the Tunnels would have on a small number of commuters and have therefore made arrangements 

with TT2 for them to supply a night service for people who pre-register for the service. The works 

to the TPCT are expected to take 13 months: the contractor’s programme indicates that the TPCT 

will open again in late June 2014. A communica&on plan has been ac&vated to bring these events 

and services to the aKen&on of users and the public generally. Also the website 

www.tynepedestrianandcyclisKunnels.co.uk is constantly updated.  

 

Paul Fenwick 

New Tyne Crossing Project Director 

 

New Tyne Crossing Review 
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Virtual reality image of the inclined liGs to be installed in the refurbished Tyne Pedestrian and 

Cyclist Tunnels.  

 

The full model can be viewed at hKp://www.tynepedestrianandcyclisKunnels.co.uk/ 

 

 

 

 

New Tyne Crossing Review 
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The Scru&ny Advisory CommiKee was established by TWITA in 2003, as its independent advisory 

body consis&ng of elected members outside the ITA structure whose purpose is to review and 

scru&nise decisions made in connec&on with the discharge of the Authority’s func&ons and make 

reports or recommenda&ons to the Authority on maKers which affect Tyne and Wear and its 

inhabitants, and which relate to the ITA’s func&ons.  

 

The CommiKee and its members are appointed annually by the five Tyne & Wear Districts. Each 

District appoints two Councillors, with the op&on that up to 2 addi&onal members from minority 

par&es can be appointed, if not represented in the ini&al 10 nomina&ons. To ensure independent 

advice—and visible separa&on between scru&ny and those being scru&nised—Councillors are not 

members of the ITA. Scru&ny appoints its own Chair and Vice Chair and agrees its own work 

programme.  

 

In May 2012 the Authority amended the &tle of the ITA Scru&ny CommiKee to the ITA Scru&ny 

Advisory Group. The terms of reference were also adapted and are now as follows: 

 

1. To consider and give advice or make recommenda&ons to the ITA on the discharge of its 

func&ons.  

2. To review or scru&nise decisions made, or other ac&on taken, in connec&on with the 

discharge of the ITA’s func&ons.  

3. To consider, and give advice or make recommenda&ons to the ITA, on maKers which affect 

Tyne and Wear or those who work, live or visit there and which relate to the ITA’s func&ons.  

 

In 2012/13 the Scru&ny Advisory Group met three &mes, in July, October and February. The 

mee&ng in April was cancelled due to work programming difficul&es arising from the Easter break 

falling early. It is proposed that informa&on relevant to the current policy topic will be circulated to 

the Group members during May to ensure con&nuity of communica&on un&l the next mee&ng in 

July 2013. AKendance at mee&ngs during 2012/13 averaged 61%.  

 

Work Programme 

The work programme for 2012/13 was discussed and agreed by the Group at their July 2012 

mee&ng. In developing the work programme, the group considered the following key ques&ons: 

• Will topics provide &mely and purposeful challenge to the ITA? 

• Will topics address known resident concerns and feedback? 

• Will topics be strategic and focussed on Tyne and Wear issues?  

• Will topics enable meaningful involvement with partners, stakeholders and the public? 

• Will topics provide evidence of good scru&ny outcomes based on the Centre for Public 

Scru&ny four principles: 

 

Scrutiny Advisory 

Group -  

A Review of 2012/13 

 
“… Giving Advice 

and Holding to 

Account …” 
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Scru(ny Advisory Group  

 

 

 

Set out below is a summary of the work of the Scru(ny Advisory Group in 2012/13: 

...provide cri&cal friend challenge to execu&ve 

policy-makers and decision-makers 

...enable to voice and concerns of the public and 

its communi&es to be heard 

...carry out scru&ny by ‘independent minded 

governors’ who lead and own the scru&ny pro-

cess 

...drive improvement in public services 

Principle Evidence 

To provide cri&cal friend 

challenge to execu&ve poli-

cy-makers and decision-

makers 

• The Group con&nued to base agenda items on the ITA’s forward 

plan providing, where possible, pre-decision scru&ny. 

• The Group received a Transport policy update to ensure       

meaningful and current policy topics are reviewed. 

• The Group discussed the Bus Strategy Delivery Project and the 

poten&al op&ons of Quality Contracts or Voluntary Partnerships, 

and received a presenta&on from Nexus.  

• The Group will con&nue with this topic and intend to invite      

representa&ves from NEBOA (North East Bus Operators Associa-

&on) 

To enable the voice and 

concerns of the public and 

its communi&es to be heard  

• The Group visited the Tyne Pedestrian and Cycle Tunnels to      

review the public provisions during closure whilst the planned 

refurbishment works take place. 

• The Group received an informa&on report on Cycling in Tyne and 

Wear, which informed members of the work being undertaken by 

partners across Tyne and Wear to support and promote cycling. 

To carry out scru&ny by 

‘independent minded gover-

nors’ who lead and own the 

scru&ny process 

• The Group agreed mee&ng &mes and venues to make                

arrangement convenient for all members. 

• The Group con&nued to have single item agendas to support 

more in-depth scru&ny of key issues.   

To drive improvement in 

public services 

• The Group received a presenta&on from Nexus which outlined 

recent developments across the rail industry, and Nexus role. 

• The Group discussed the Government’s command paper 

“Reforming our Railways” and invited a representa&ve from 

the RMT Union to hear their views on the reforms.  
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Membership of the Scru(ny Advisory Group 2012/13 

Scru(ny Advisory Group 

     

David Tate (Chair) 

Sunderland 

Muriel Green 

North Tyneside 

Tom Graham 

Gateshead 

Richard 

Porterhouse 

South Tyneside 

George PaHson 

Newcastle 

     

Neville Padge5 

(Vice Chair) 

Sunderland 

David Ord 

North Tyneside 

Malcolm Graham 

Gateshead 

Bob Wa5ers 

South Tyneside 

Stephen Fairlie 

Newcastle 

     

David Sarin 

North Tyneside 
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ITA  Audit Committee 

and Standards     

Committee - A Review 

of 2012/13 

 

Standards Commi5ee 

 

As reported in last year’s review, the Localism Act 2011 required fundamental changes to the 

Authority’s Standards regime.  

 

At the Authority’s Annual Mee&ng in May 2012, it agreed that the exis&ng Standards and Audit 

commiKee would be replaced with two separate commiKees: a Standards CommiKee and an Audit 

CommiKee. Both commiKees comprise the same five elected members of the Authority, 

appointed on a poli&cally balanced basis, and four independent members.  

 

In May 2012, the Authority also agreed some of the essen&al elements of the new standards 

regime to operate from July 2012. However, it deferred adop&ng a final version of a new Code of 

Conduct, pending Government regula&ons. AGer publica&on of those regula&ons, the Standards 

CommiKee considered and was then able to recommend adop&on of a new Member’s Code of 

Conduct. The Code was subsequently adopted by the Authority on 26 July 2012.  

 

The Standards CommiKee has also considered and approved the Authority’s wriKen arrangements 

for dealing with standards complaints. Those Arrangements can be found on the Authority’s 

website.  

 

Current terms of reference for Standards Commi5ee 

 

The terms of reference of the Standards CommiKee are as follows: 

1. Promo&ng and maintaining high standards of conduct by councillors and co-opted members; 

2. Assis&ng the councillors and co-opted members to observe the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

3. Advising the Authority on the adop&on or revision of the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

4. Monitoring the opera&on of the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

5. Advising, training or arranging to train councillors and co-opted members on maKers rela&ng to 

the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

6. Gran&ng dispensa&ons to councillors and co-opted members from requirements rela&ng to 

interests set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct so far as not delegated to the Monitoring 

Officer; 

7. Dealing with wriKen allega&ons that a councillor or co-opted member (or former councillor or 

co-opted member) of the Authority has failed, or may have failed, to comply with the Members’ 

Code of Conduct; 
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Standards Commi5ee and Audit Commi5ee  

8. Dealing with complaints that a councillor or co-opted member of the Authority has failed, or 

may have failed, to comply with one of the Authority’s local protocols. 

 

Mee(ngs in 2012/13 

The CommiKee met three &mes: 

• July 2012 

• September 2012 

• February 2013 

 

Looking ahead: 

The main focus of our work next year will be: 

• To consider any general conduct issues which arise, and 

• To consider and determine allega&ons of Members’ misconduct (if any).  

 

 

Audit Commi5ee 

 

Following changes to the Standards regime required as a result of the Localism Act 2011, from July 

2012 the ITA Audit CommiKee was established as a separate commiKee with its own work 

programme (having previously formed part of the combined Standards and Audit CommiKee).  

 

In 2012/13 the independent membership of the CommiKee remained unchanged, but there were 

a number of new members appointed at the 2012 Annual Mee&ng of the ITA. New members 

received training on the roles and responsibili&es of an Audit CommiKee from the ITA Senior 

Accountant and the Head of Audit and Strategic Risk in July 2012.  

 

During the year the CommiKee also monitored the work of DeloiKe, the ITA’s external auditors. 

This included reviewing their proposed audit plan, and the results of the annual audit and the 

Annual Audit LeKer. The results of the audit were posi&ve and DeloiKe did not iden&fy any 

significant concerns over the Authority’s financial repor&ng.  

 

Audit CommiKee reviewed the ITA’s Annual Report and Accounts and recommended it to the 

Authority for final sign-off. The CommiKee also considered the Annual Governance Statement and 

Local Code of Corporate Governance, which did not iden&fy any significant weaknesses or areas 

for improvement.  

 

As in previous years, the CommiKee monitored the performance of the Internal Audit func&on and 

in par&cular, the outcome of individual audits as well as the annual report of the Head of Audit and 

Strategic Risk, which had concluded that the Authority’s control systems were good.  

 

Other items on the CommiKee’s work programme during 2012/13 included considering the 

Authority’s Budget report and Treasury Management Strategy, Accoun&ng Policies, Revenue 

Budget Monitoring reports, the Strategic Risk Register and a report on funding and financing 

arrangement for the Tyne Tunnels. Members also received a presenta&on from Nexus on the 

North East Smart Ticke&ng Ini&a&ve (NESTI) in September 2012.  
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Standards Commi5ee and Audit Commi5ee  

Purpose of the Audit Commi5ee: 

The purpose of the CommiKee can be summarised as follows: 

1. Provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the 

associated control environment; 

2. Provide independent scru&ny of the Authority’s financial and non-financial performance to 

the extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control 

environment; 

3. Oversee the financial repor&ng process.  

 

Detailed roles and responsibili&es for the CommiKee are agreed annually by the ITA, and can be 

viewed on the ITA website at www.twita.gov.uk 

 

Focus for 2013/14 

Key areas of the Audit CommiKee’s work in the forthcoming year will be: 

• To consider the Annual Report and Accounts for 2012/13 and the work of the external 

auditor, making recommenda&ons to the ITA as appropriate; 

• To consider the work of Internal Audit including the appropriateness and coverage of the 

Audit Plan for 2013/14; 

• To consider the Authority’s budget and Treasury Management strategy, as well as receiving 

reports on performance against the revenue budget; 

• To consider the Authority’s arrangements for risk management and control.  

 

Members of Standards Commi5ee and Audit Commi5ee in 2012/13 

Independent Members 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITA Members 

 

 

 

 

M Scrimshaw 

(Chair) 

T. Atkinson G. Clark E. Green 

B. Curran 

(Sunderland) 

A. Lawson 

(Sunderland) 

P. Maughan 

(Gateshead) 

J. O’Shea 

(North Tyneside) 

A. Smith 

(South Tyneside) 



32 

 



33 

 

 

Statement of            

Responsibilities for 

the Statement of       

Accounts 

 

 
The Authority’s Responsibili(es 

 

The Authority is required: 

 

• To make arrangements for the proper administra&on of its financial affairs and to 

secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administra&on of those 

affairs.  In this Authority, that officer is the Treasurer & Deputy Clerk. 

 

• To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effec&ve use of resources, and 

to safeguard its assets.  

 

• To approve the statement of accounts by 30 September 2013.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed ………………………………………………………. 

Councillor D. Wood, Chair of the Tyne & Wear ITA 

Date:  
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Treasurer's Cer(ficate  

I hereby cer&fy that the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013, required by 

the Accounts and Audit Regula&ons 2011 are set out in the following pages. 

 

I further cer&fy that the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial posi&on 

of the Authority at 31 March 2013 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 

2013. 

 

 

Signed ………………………………………………………. 

P. V. Woods, Treasurer  

Date:  

The Treasurer’s Responsibili(es 

 

The Treasurer is responsible for the prepara&on of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts which, in 

terms of the CIPFA / LASAAC Code of Prac&ce on Local Authority Accoun&ng in Great Britain (‘the 

Code’), is required to give a true and fair view of the financial posi&on of the Authority at the 

accoun&ng date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2013.  

 

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Treasurer has: 

 

• Selected suitable accoun&ng policies and then applied them consistently 

• Made judgements and es&mates that were reasonable and prudent 

• Complied with the Code 

 

The Treasurer has also: 

 

• Kept proper accoun&ng records which were up to date 

• Taken reasonable steps for the preven&on and detec&on of fraud and other 

irregulari&es 
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Sec(on 2 
 

Tyne & Wear Integrated 

Transport Authority 
 

Accounts for the year ended 31 

March 2013 
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Movement in Reserves Statement 

 

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, 

analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce the 

levy) and ‘unusable reserves’ which can not be used in this way. The surplus or deficit on provision 

of services line shows the economic cost in accoun&ng terms of providing the ITA’s services, more 

details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are 

different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for the 

purposes of sePng the levy. The net increase or decrease before transfers to earmarked reserves 

line shows the statutory General Fund balance before any discre&onary transfers to or from 

earmarked reserves undertaken by the Authority.  

 

 

General 

Fund

Earmarked 

Reserves

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2012 (44,277)  (14,357)   -          (58,634)  (59,862)  (118,496) 

Movement in Reserves During 

2012/13

(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of 

Services

(1,704)    -          -          (1,704)    -         (1,704)     

Other Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure

-         -          -          -         2,750     2,750      

Total Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure

(1,704)    -          -          (1,704)    2,750     1,046      

Adjustments between Accounting 

Basis and Funding Basis Under 

Regulations (Note 4)

5,154     -          -          5,154     (5,154)    -          

Net (Increase) / Decrease 

before transfers to Earmarked 

Reserves

3,450     -          -          3,450     (2,404)    1,046      

Transfers (to) / from Earmarked 

Reserves (Note 5)

(2,032)    2,032      -          -         -         -          

(Increase) / Decrease in 

2012/13

1,418     2,032      -          3,450     (2,404)    1,046      

Balance at 31 March 2013 

carried forward

(42,859)  (12,325)   -          (55,184)  (62,266)  (117,450) 
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Movement in Reserves Statement 

 

Compara(ve Figures for 2011/12 

 

General 

Fund

Earmarked 

Reserves

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2011 (43,372)  (12,438)   (288)        (56,098)  (60,329)  (116,427) 

Movement in Reserves During 

2011/12

(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of 

Services

(5,132)    -          -          (5,132)    -         (5,132)     

Other Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure

-          -          -         3,063     3,063      

Total Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure

(5,132)    -          -          (5,132)    3,063     (2,069)     

Adjustments between Accounting 

Basis and Funding Basis Under 

Regulations (Note 4)

2,308     -          288         2,596     (2,596)    -          

Net (Increase) / Decrease 

before transfers to Earmarked 

Reserves

(2,824)    -          288         (2,536)    467        (2,069)     

Transfers (to) / from Earmarked 

Reserves (Note 5)

1,919     (1,919)     -          -         -         -          

(Increase) / Decrease in 

2011/12

(905)       (1,919)     288         (2,536)    467        (2,069)     

Balance at 31 March 2012 

carried forward

(44,277)  (14,357)   -          (58,634)  (59,862)  (118,496) 
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 

This statement shows the economic cost in year of providing services in accordance with generally 

accepted accoun&ng prac&ces, rather than the amount to be funded from the levy. Integrated 

Transport Authori&es raise a levy to cover expenditure in accordance with regula&ons; this may be 

different from the accoun&ng cost. The levy posi&on is shown in the Movement in Reserves 

Statement.  

 

Gross 

Expenditure

Gross 

Income

Net 

Expenditure

Gross 

Expenditure

Gross 

Income

Net 

Expenditure

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

453           -         453           Corporate and Democratic 435           -         435           

Highways and Transport 

13,328      (20,519)  (7,191)        - Tyne Tunnels 18,079      (25,088)  (7,009)       

82,028      (11,453)  70,575       - Other Highways and 

Transport Services

91,209      (22,083)  69,126      

-            -         -             Non-Distributed Costs 10             -         10             

95,809      (31,972)  63,837      Cost of Services 109,733    (47,171)  62,562      

8,412        (3,588)    4,824        Financing and Investment 

Income and Expenditure 

(note 6)

9,101        (3,160)    5,941        

-            (73,792)  (73,792)     Taxation and Non-Specific 

Grant Income (note 7) 

-            (70,207)  (70,207)     

(5,132)       (Surplus) / Deficit on 

Provision of Services

(1,704)       

(597)          Surplus / (Deficit) on 

Revaluation of Fixed Assets 

(Note 8)

-            

3,660        Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 

on Pension Fund Assets 

and Liabilities (note 29)

2,750        

3,063        Other Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure

2,750        

(2,069)       Total Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure

1,046        

2012/132011/12
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Balance Sheet 

 

The Balance Sheet shows the value at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabili&es of the 

Authority. The Net Assets (Assets less Liabili&es) are matched by Reserves. Reserves are reported 

in two categories: Usable (i.e. those the Authority may use to provide services subject to any 

statutory limita&ons on their use) and Unusable (those the Authority may not use to provide 

services). This category includes reserve that hold unrealised gains and losses (e.g. the Revalua&on 

Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; 

and reserves that hold &ming differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line 

“adjustments between accoun&ng basis and funding basis under regula&on”.  

 

Treasurer’s Cer(ficate 

 

I cer&fy that the accounts set out on pages 37 to 90 present a true and fair view of the financial 

posi&on of the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority as at 31 March 2013. 

 

Signed 

 

 

Treasurer  

Date:  

31 March 

2012 Notes

31 March 

2013

£000 £000

368,344      Property, Plant and Equipment 8 365,566      

49,104        Long Term Debtors 9, 10 47,141        

417,448      Long Term Assets 412,707      

23,000        Short Term Investments 9 18,000        

11,842        Short Term Debtors 9, 11 16,858        

66,454        Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 74,084        

101,296      Current Assets 108,942      

(4,726)         Short Term Borrowing 9 (4,694)         

(35,030)       Short Term Creditors 9, 13 (44,684)       

(5,501)         New Tyne Crossing - Deferred Income 28 (5,501)         

(8,637)         Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance 14 (10,125)       

(53,893)       Current Liabilities (65,004)       

(127,331)     New Tyne Crossing - Deferred Income 28 (122,222)     

(6,734)         Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance 14 (5,830)         

(205,560)     Long Term Borrowing 9 (202,893)     

(6,730)         Other Long Term Liabilities 9, 29 (8,250)         

(346,355)     Long Term Liabilities (339,195)     

118,496      Net Assets 117,450      

(58,633)       Usable Reserves 15 (55,184)       

(59,863)       Unusable Reserves 16 (62,266)       

(118,496)     (117,450)     
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Cash Flow Statement 

 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during 

the repor&ng period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash 

equivalents by classifying cash flows from opera&ng, inves&ng and financing ac&vi&es. The amount 

of net cash flows arising from opera&ng ac&vi&es is a key indicator of the extent to which the 

opera&ons of the Authority are funded by way of levy and grant income or from the recipients of 

services provided to the Authority. Inves&ng ac&vi&es represent the extent to which cash ouQlows 

have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future service 

delivery. Cash flows arising from financing ac&vi&es are useful in predic&ng claims on future cash 

flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.  

 

 

2011/12 Notes 2012/13

£000 £000

(5,132)                      Net surplus on the provision of services (1,704)                      

(2,181)                      Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services for non cash movements

18 (2,214)                      

11,236                     Adjustments for items included in the net 

surplus or deficit on the provision of services 

that are investing and financing activities

18 20,671                     

3,923                       Net cash flows from Operating Activities 16,753                     

28,183                     Investing activities 19 (27,082)                    

(52,728)                    Financing activities 20 2,699                       

(20,622)                    Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (7,630)                      

(45,832)                    Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 

the reporting period

(66,454)                    

(66,454)                    Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

reporting period

12 (74,084)                    
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 1: Accoun(ng Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted 

 

Changes from the 2012/13 Code  

 

The Code of Prac&ce on Local Authority Accoun&ng in the United Kingdom 2013/14 (the Code) has 

introduced a change in accoun&ng policy in rela&on to the treatment of IFRS 7 Financial 

Instruments Disclosures OffsePng Financial Assets and Liabili&es. The change in accoun&ng policy 

has been reviewed and it has been concluded that this change does not impact on the ITA as 

transac&ons of this nature have not been entered into.  

 

A revised IAS19 (Interna&onal Accoun&ng Standard) will come into force for accoun&ng periods 

beginning on or aGer 1 January 2013. This standard deals with accoun&ng for pension costs. If this 

revised IAS19 were adopted for the accoun&ng period ending 31 March 2013 then this will 

increase the expenses recognised for funded benefits from a credit of £0.29m to an expense of 

£0.26m. There is no effect on the balance sheet.  

 

The 2013/14 Code has also introduced a change in respect of IAS12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of 

Underlying Assets (December 2010 Amendments). Such transac&ons are not common for local 

authori&es and the ITA has not entered into any transac&ons covered by the changes in the 

2012/13 financial year.  

 

Amendments to IAS 1 Presenta&on of Financial Statements (other comprehensive income June 

2011) has been introduced. The change requires authori&es to disclose separately the gains or 

losses reclassifiable into the (Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services. The gains and losses are 

already iden&fied on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and no further 

disclosure is required.  

 

Note 2: Cri(cal Judgements in Applying Accoun(ng Policies 

 

In applying the accoun&ng policies set out in these accounts, the Authority has had to make 

certain judgements about complex transac&ons or those involving uncertainty about future 

events. The cri&cal judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:  

 

Leases 

Judgements have been made about whether leases are classified as opera&ng or finance leases. 

This has an impact on the way they are accounted for: where a lease is classified as a finance lease, 

an asset and a finance lease liability must be recognised. Under an opera&ng lease, payments are 

charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and no liability is recognised. 

The Authority has a number of leases, which have all been reviewed by Property Surveyors against 

the criteria for determining their classifica&on. All have been classified as opera&ng leases.  

 

Service Concession Arrangements 

The Local Authority Accoun&ng Code of Prac&ce requires arrangements where private sector 

contractors provide a service for a period using a dedicated asset to be assessed under an 

applica&on of the principles within IFRIC 12. There are two criteria used to determine whether 

arrangements fall under the scope of IFRIC 12:  
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 2 (Con(nued) 

 

• The public sector en&ty controls or regulates the services that the operator must provide 

with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price 

• The public sector en&ty controls, through ownership, beneficial en&tlement or otherwise, 

any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the service arrangement. 

 

 

For arrangements falling under the scope of IFRIC 12, the public sector en&ty will recognise the 

cost of the Property, Plant and Equipment underlying the service concession as a tangible fixed 

asset. The New Tyne Crossing concession has been judged to meet both of the IFRIC 12 criteria 

and, accordingly, the cost of the new Tunnel and refurbishment of the exis&ng Tunnel are 

recorded within its Property, Plant and Equipment.  

 

 

 

 

Note 3: Assump(ons Made About the Future and Other Sources of Es(ma(on Uncertainty 

 

The Statement of Accounts contains es&mated figures that are based on assump&ons made by the 

Authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Es&mates are made taking into 

account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because 

balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the 

assump&ons and es&mates. The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2013 for which 

there is a risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

Item Uncertainty Effect if Actual Results Differ From Assump(ons 

Pensions 

Liability 

Es&ma&on of the net liability to pay 

pensions depends on a number of 

complex judgements rela&ng to the 

discount rate used, the rate at 

which salaries are projected to 

increase, changes in re&rement 

ages, mortality rates and expected 

returns on pension fund assets. A 

firm of consul&ng actuaries is 

engaged to provide the Authority 

with expert advice about the 

assump&ons to be applied.  

The effects on the net pension liability for funded 

LGPS benefits of changes in individual 

assump&ons can be measured. For instance, a 

0.5% increase in the discount rate assump&ons 

would result in a decrease in the pension liability 

of £2.06m. However, the assump&ons interact in 

complex ways. During 2012/13, the Authority’s 

actuaries advised that the net pensions liability 

for funded LGPS benefits had increased by 

£0.02m as a result of es&mates being corrected 

as a result of experience and increased by £3.78m 

aKributable to upda&ng of the assump&ons.  
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 4: Adjustments between Accoun(ng Basis and Funding Basis under Regula(ons 

 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and 

expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accoun&ng prac&ce 

to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to 

meet future capital and revenue expenditure.  

 

 

2012/13 

 

 

 

 

General

Fund

Balance

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Movement 

in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000

(3,862)       -            3,862        

5,109        -            (5,109)       

-            -            -            

(20,258)     -            20,258      

2,192        -            (2,192)       

-            -            -            Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund

Write down of New Tyne Crossing deferred income balance

Capital grants and contributions applied

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment

Usable Reserves

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current 

assets
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 4 (Con(nued) 

Compara(ve Figures for 2011/12 

General

Fund

Balance

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Movement 

in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000

20,671      -            (20,671)     

72             -            (72)            

250           -            (250)          

980           -            (980)          

Total Adjustments 5,154        -            (5,154)       

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account

Adjustments involving the Financial Instruments 

Adjustment Account:

Amount by which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement are different from finance 

costs chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (see Note 29)

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year

Usable Reserves

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied 

Account:

General

Fund

Balance

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Movement 

in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000

(6,481)       -            6,481        

5,628        -            (5,628)       

11,175      -            (11,175)     

(13,119)     -            13,119      

2,061        -            (2,061)       

1,776        -            (1,776)       

Usable Reserves

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement:

Write down of New Tyne Crossing deferred income balance

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current 

assets

Capital grants and contributions applied

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 4 (Con(nued) 

 

 

Note 5: Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves 

 

This note sets out the balances in earmarked reserves set aside to provide financing for future 

expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund 

expenditure in 2012/13, with compara&ve figures for 2011/12.  

 

 

General

Fund

Balance

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Movement 

in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000

288            (288)          

61             -            (61)            

260           -            (260)          

947           -            (947)          

Total Adjustments 2,308        288            (2,596)       

Usable Reserves

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (see Note 29)

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied 

Account:

Adjustments involving the Financial Instruments 

Adjustment Account:

Amount by which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement are different from finance 

costs chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements

Balance 

at 

01/04/11

Transfers 

Out 

2011/12

Transfers 

In 

2011/12

Balance 

at 

31/03/12

Transfers 

Out 

2012/13

Transfers 

In 

2012/13

Balance 

at 

31/03/13

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Metro Reinvigoration 

Reserve

(12,438)  -         (1,919)    (14,357)  2,204     (172)       (12,325)  

Total (12,438)  -         (1,919)    (14,357)  2,204     (172)       (12,325)  
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 6: Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

 

 

Note 7: Taxa(on and non-specific Grant Income 

 

 

Note 8: Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

 

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

8,412         9,101         

(260)           (260)           

(3,328)        (2,900)        

4,824         5,941         

Interest payable and similar charges

Interest receivable and similar income

Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(73,792)      (70,207)      

(73,792)      (70,207)      

Levy on Tyne and Wear Authorities

Land Vehicles, 

Plant, 

Furniture 

& 

Equipment

Infrastructure 

Assets

Assets Under 

Construction 

/ Work in 

Progress

Total  

Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2012 12,135 3,205        372,767         423              388,530    

Additions -       -            683                401              1,084        

At 31 March 2013 12,135 3,205        373,450         824              389,614    

Accumulated Depreciation and 

Impairment

At 1 April 2012 -       (542)          (19,644)          -               (20,186)     

Depreciation charge -       (92)            (3,770)            -               (3,862)       

At 31 March 2013 -       (634)          (23,414)          -               (24,048)     

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2013 12,135 2,571        350,036         824              365,566    

At 31 March 2012 12,135 2,663        353,123         423              368,344    
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 8 (Con(nued) 

 

Compara(ve Figures for 2011/12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Land Vehicles, 

Plant, 

Furniture 

& 

Equipment

Infrastructure 

Assets

Assets Under 

Construction 

/ Work in 

Progress

Total  

Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2011 12,135 3,074        353,895         -               369,104    

Additions -       -            21,499           423              21,922      

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation 

Reserve

-       597           -                 -               597           

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 

the Provision of Services

-       -            (2,627)            -               (2,627)       

Other movements in Cost or 

Valuation

-       (466)          -                 -               (466)          

At 31 March 2012 12,135 3,205        372,767         423              388,530    

Accumulated Depreciation and 

Impairment

At 1 April 2011 -       (450)          (15,882)          -               (16,332)     

Depreciation charge -       (92)            (3,762)            -               (3,854)       

At 31 March 2012 -       (542)          (19,644)          -               (20,186)     

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2012 12,135 2,663        353,123         423              368,344    

At 31 March 2011 12,135 2,624        338,013         -               352,772    
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 8 (Con(nued) 

 

Deprecia(on 

 

The following useful lives and deprecia&on rates have been used in the calcula&on of deprecia&on: 

• Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment - 30 years. This class of assets relates to plant, 

machinery and other equipment and fiPngs that were transferred to TT2 Ltd at the 

commencement of the 30 year contract for the opera&on of the Tyne Tunnels. These assets 

are defined as “handback assets” in the Project Agreement, as they (or their equivalent 

replacements) must be returned to the ITA at the end of the contract  

• Vehicle Tunnels (Infrastructure) - 120 years 

• Pedestrian and Cycle Tunnels (Infrastructure) - 40-120 years 

• Land - This category is not depreciated as it has no finite useful life  

 

Revalua(ons 

 

The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment 

required to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. All valua&ons were 

carried out by surveyors from the Lead Authority, Newcastle City Council. Valua&ons of land and 

buildings and Infrastructure were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for 

es&ma&on set out in the professional standards of the Royal Ins&tu&on of Chartered Surveyors. 

Valua&ons of Vehicles, Plant and Equipment relate to assets transferred to the use of TT2 Ltd as 

described above. The valua&ons are based on records held by TT2 Ltd.  

 

The significant assump&ons applied in es&ma&ng the fair values are: 

• That no high alumina cement, concrete or calcium chloride addi&ve or other poten&ally 

deleterious material was used in the construc&on of the property and that none has been 

subsequently incorporated 

• The property is not subject to any unusual or especially onerous restric&ons, encumberances 

or outgoings and that good &tle can be shown 

• The property and its value are unaffected by any maKers which would be revealed by a local 

search or inspec&on of any register and the use and occupa&on are both lawful 

• Inspec&on of those parts which have not been inspected would not cause the Appointed 

Valuer to alter the opinion of value  

• The land and proper&es are not contaminated 

• The land and buildings are fully equipped with fixed plant and equipment 

• The Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority con&nues to maintain and repair all 

buildings and structures in a proper manner 
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 9: Financial Instruments 

 

The following categories of financial instrument are carried on the Balance Sheet:  

The £18m short-term investment shown relates to investments placed on behalf of Nexus by the 

ITA. The increase in short term debtors is largely due to an increase from £5m to £10m of the 

debtor with Newcastle City Council for monies invested on behalf of Nexus at the balance sheet 

date. A corresponding creditor is shown under short-term creditors to recognise the fact that the 

total investment of £28m must be repaid to Nexus on their request.  

 

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses 

 

Financial liabili&es, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors 

and creditors are carried on the Balance Sheet at amor&sed cost. Their fair value can be assessed 

by calcula&ng the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of 

the instrument, using the following assump&ons: 

• Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) interest rates for new fixed borrowing in the appropriate 

maturity bands as at 31 March 2013 

• No early repayment or impairment is recognised 

• Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, carrying amount is assumed to 

approximate to fair value 

• The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount. 

• Es&mated ranges of interest rates at 31 March 2013 of 0.62% to 10.125% for loans from the 

PWLB and 4.07% to 4.94% for other loans receivable and payable, based on new lending 

rates for equivalent loans at that date 

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

23,000               18,000               

Long Term Debtors:

49,104               Loans to Nexus 47,141               

Short Term Debtors:

11,842               Short term debtors: 16,858               

31 March 2012 31 March 2012

£000 Borrowings: £000

(4,726)                Short term borrowing (4,694)                

(205,560)            (202,893)            

(210,286)            (207,587)            

Other Long Term Liabilities:

(6,730)                (8,250)                

Short Term Creditors:

(35,030)              Short Term Creditors (44,684)              

Pensions Liability

Financial liabilities at amortised cost - long term borrowing

Short Term Investments:

Bank deposits
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 9 (Con(nued) 

 

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 

rela&on to financial instruments are made up as follows: 

 

 

Borrowings and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are shown at amor&sed cost. For most 

of the Authority’s borrowings, this means that the amount presented is the outstanding principal 

repayable plus accrued interest.  

 

The fair value of borrowings and investments disclosed below is assessed by calcula&ng the net 

present value of the cash flows that take place over the remaining life of the instruments. The fair 

value is higher than the carrying amount because the Authority’s porQolio of loans includes a 

number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the rates applicable to 

similar loans in the market at the Balance Sheet date. This commitment to pay interest above 

current market rate increases the amount that the Authority would have to pay (in terms of 

premiums etc.) if the lender requested or agreed to early repayment of the loans.  

 

For financial instruments with a maturity of twelve months or less the fair value is taken to be the 

invoiced or billed amount.  

 

For the long term debtor with Nexus, the fair value has been determined to be equal to the 

carrying value.  

Financial 

Liabilities 

(amortised 

cost)

Financial 

Assets: 

Loans and 

Receivables 

Total Financial 

Liabilities 

(amortised 

cost)

Financial 

Assets: 

Loans and 

Receivables 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

8,412         8,412      Interest expense 9,101         9,101      

8,412         -             8,412      

Total expense in 

Surplus/Deficit on 

Provision of Services 9,101         -             9,101      

-             (3,328)        (3,328)    Interest income -             (2,900)        (2,900)    

-             (3,328)        (3,328)    

Total income in 

Surplus/Deficit on 

Provision of Services -             (2,900)        (2,900)    

8,412         (3,328)        5,084      

Net (gain)/loss for the 

year 9,101         (2,900)        6,201      

2012/132011/12
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 9 (Con(nued) 

 

Financial Liabili(es 

 

Financial Assets 

 

 

Note 10: Long Term Debtors 

 

The long term debtor represents loans to Nexus made in previous years, to finance capital 

expenditure on works rela&ng to Metro opera&ons, special needs transport and bus sta&ons.  

 

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

49,104                      Loans to Nexus 47,141                      

49,104                      Closing Balance 31 March 47,141                      

Carrying

amount

Fair

value

Carrying

amount

Fair

value

£000 £000 £000 £000

Short Term Borrowing

(3,700)               (3,700)               Public Works Loan Board (3,677)               (3,677)               

(1,026)               (1,026)               Market Loans (1,017)               (1,017)               

(4,726)               (4,726)               (4,694)               (4,694)               

Long Term Borrowing

(116,560)           (141,249)           Public Works Loan Board (113,893)           (142,041)           

(89,000)             (117,094)           Market Loans (89,000)             (133,343)           

(205,560)           (258,343)           (202,893)           (275,384)           

(210,286)           (263,069)           Total Borrowing (207,587)           (280,078)           

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

Carrying

amount

Fair

value

Carrying

amount

Fair

value

£000 £000 £000 £000

49,104              49,104              Long-term debtors 47,141              47,141              

49,104              49,104              Total 47,141              47,141              

31 March 2012 31 March 2013
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 11: Short Term Debtors 

 

Note 12: Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

 

ITA cash was held at the year end in the Newcastle City Council District Account.  

 

 

Note 13: Short Term Creditors 

 

The significant level of short term creditors due to Nexus reflects the fact that the ITA is holding 

£18m of investments on Nexus’ behalf, which are shown as short term investments, and an 

addi&onal £10m debtor with Newcastle City Council for Nexus funds placed in their name. The 

creditor is shown to recognise that the total £28m must be repaid to Nexus on their request.  

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

454                          907                          

5,289                       Other Local Authorities 10,056                     

6,099                       5,895                       

11,842                     Total 16,858                     

Central Government Bodies

Other entities and individuals

Within 'Other entities and individuals', £6,043k relates to Nexus at 31/03/12 and £5,798k relates to 

Nexus at 31/03/13. 

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

66,454                     Bank current accounts 74,084                     

66,454                     Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 74,084                     

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

(50)                           Central government bodies -                           

(883)                         Other local authorities (1,963)                      

(34,097)                    Other bodies (42,721)                    

(35,030)                    Total (44,684)                    

'Other bodies' can be broken down as follows:

(30,573)                    Nexus (39,257)                    

(2,599)                      TT2 Ltd (2,517)                      

(653)                         Prepaid Tunnels Permits (705)                         

(78)                           Accrued payments to pension fund (5)                             

(137)                         New Tyne Crossing Professional Advisors (145)                         

(57)                           Other entities and individuals (92)                           

(34,097)                    (42,721)                    
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 14: Grants and Contribu(ons Received in Advance 

Grants and Contribu&ons Received in Advance have been split between long term and short term 

liabili&es based on the budget for 2012/13.  

 

Note 15: Usable Reserves 

 

Summary 

 

ITA General Fund 

This represents the unearmarked balances of the ITA which can be used to support ITA 

expenditure or allow for a reduc&on in the levy on Tyne and Wear authori&es.  

 

 

Tyne Tunnels General Fund 

This reserve represents the balances of the ringfenced Tyne Tunnels trading account. It is shown 

separately from the ITA General Fund as it is used to support Tyne Tunnels ac&vity only, and is 

separate from levy-funded ac&vi&es undertaken by the ITA.  

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

                      (8,114) NESTI Contributions from Local Authorities                       (4,879)

                      (4,478) Local Sustainable Transport Fund  - Schools Go Smarter                       (3,331)

                              -   Local Sustainable Transport Fund  - Go Smarter to Work                       (4,888)

                              -   Better Bus Area Fund                       (2,554)

                      (2,779) Local Transport Plan                          (303)

(15,371)                    Balance at 31 March (15,955)                    

(8,637)                      Shown as Short-Term Liability on Balance Sheet                     (10,125)

(6,734)                      Shown as Long-Term Liability on Balance Sheet                       (5,830)

(15,371)                    (15,955)                    

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

General Fund Reserves

(2,519)                       - ITA General Fund (2,382)                     

(41,757)                     - Tyne Tunnels General Fund (40,476)                   

(44,276)                    Total General Fund Reserves (42,858)                   

(14,357)                    Earmarked Metro Reinvigoration Reserve (12,325)                   

-                           Capital Grants and Contributions Unapplied -                          

(58,633)                    Total Usable Reserves (55,183)                   

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(2,600)                      Balance at 1 April (2,519)                     

81                            Drawn down to support expenditure in year 137                         

(2,519)                      Balance at 31 March (2,382)                     
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 15 (Con(nued) 

 

Earmarked Metro Reinvigora(on Reserve 

This is an earmarked reserve which holds amounts ringfenced for expenditure on Metro 

Reinvigora&on. 

 

 

 

 

Note 16: Unusable Reserves 

 

 

 

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(40,772)                    Balance at 1 April (41,757)                   

(2,871)                      (Surplus)/Deficit on Tyne Tunnels trading account 868                         

1,886                       NESTI expenditure funded by Tyne Tunnels reserves 413                         

(41,757)                    Balance at 31 March (40,476)                   

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(12,438)                    Balance at 1 April (14,357)                   

(199)                         Interest on reserve (172)                        

-                           Draw down to support expenditure in year 2,204                      

(1,720)                      Funds set aside to be used for future years -                          

(14,357)                    Balance at 31 March (12,325)                   

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

(11,167)                    Revaluation Reserve (10,290)                    

(55,669)                    Capital Adjustment Account (60,398)                    

243                          Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 171                          

6,730                       Pensions Reserve 8,250                       

(59,863)                    Total Unusable Reserves (62,267)                    
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 16 (Con(nued) 

 

Revalua(on Reserve 

 

The Revalua&on Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the 

value of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated 

gains are: 

• Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 

• Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through deprecia&on, or 

• Disposed of and the gains are realised 

 

The Reserve contains only revalua&on gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the 

Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance 

on the Capital Adjustment Account.  

 

Capital Adjustment Account 

 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the &ming differences arising from the different 

arrangements for the consump&on of non-current assets and for financing the acquisi&on, 

construc&on or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited 

with the cost of acquisi&on, construc&on or enhancement as deprecia&on, impairment losses and 

amor&sa&on are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with 

reconciling pos&ngs from the Revalua&on Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost 

basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs 

of acquisi&on, construc&on and enhancement.  

 

The Account also contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Proper&es and gains 

recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority. The Account also 

contains revalua&on gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the 

date that the Revalua&on Reserve was created to hold such gains.  

 

Note 4 provides details of the source of all the transac&ons posted to the Account, apart from 

those involving the Revalua&on Reserve.  

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(10,570)                    Balance at 1 April (11,167)                    

(597)                         Upward revaluation of assets -                           

-                           Difference between fair value depreciation and 

historical cost depreciation

877                          

-                           Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account 877                          

(11,167)                    Balance at 31 March (10,290)                    
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 16 (Con(nued) 

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 

 

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the &ming differences arising from the 

different arrangements for accoun&ng for income and expenses rela&ng to certain financial 

instruments and for bearing losses or benefi&ng from gains per statutory provisions. It provides a 

balancing mechanism between the different rates at which gains and losses (e.g. premiums on the 

early repayment of debt) are recognised under the Code and are required by statute to be met 

from the General Fund.  

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

304                          Balance at 1 April 243                          

(61)                           Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial 

years to be charged against the General Fund Balance 

in accordance with statutory requirements

(72)                           

243                          Balance at 31 March 171                          

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(54,340)                    Balance at 1 April (55,669)                    

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure 

debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement:

6,481                       Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current 

assets

3,862                       

(5,628)                      Write down New Tyne Crossing deferred income 

balance

(5,109)                      

13,119                     Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 20,258                     

-                            Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal 

or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

-                           

(40,368)                    (36,658)                    

-                           Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation 

Reserve

(877)                         

Capital financing applied in the year:

-                           Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new 

capital expenditure

-                           

-                           Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new 

capital expenditure

-                           

(11,175)                    Capital grants and contributions credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that 

have been applied to capital financing

(20,671)                    

(288)                         Application of grants to capital financing from the 

Capital Grants Unapplied Account

-                           

(2,062)                      Statutory provision for the financing of capital 

investment charged against the General Fund

(2,192)                      

(1,776)                      Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund -                           

(55,669)                    Balance at 31 March (60,398)                    
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 16 (Con(nued) 

 

Pensions Reserve 

 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the &ming differences arising from the different arrangements for 

accoun&ng for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory 

provisions. The Authority accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, 

upda&ng the liabili&es recognised to reflect infla&on, changing assump&ons and investment 

returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require 

benefits earned to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s contribu&ons to pension funds 

or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the 

Pensions Reserve therefore shows a shorQall in the benefits earned by past and current employees 

and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will 

ensure that funding will have been set aside by the &me the benefits come to be paid.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

4,277                       Balance at 1 April 6,730                       

3,660                       Actuarial (gains) or losses on pensions assets and 

liabilities

2,750                       

(260)                         Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits 

debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement 

(250)                         

(947)                         Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments 

to pensioners payable in the year

(980)                         

6,730                       Balance at 31 March 8,250                       
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 17: Cash Flow Statement: Opera(ng Ac(vi(es 

 

The cash flows for opera&ng ac&vi&es includes the following items rela&ng to interest paid and 

received:  

 

 

Note 18: Cash Flow Statement: Adjustments to Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

for non-cash movements and items that are Inves(ng or Financing Ac(vi(es 

 

 

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

3,328                       Interest received 2,900                       

(8,412)                      Interest paid (9,101)                      

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(5,132)                      Surplus or deficit on the provision of services (1,704)                      

 Adjustments to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 

Services for Non-Cash Movements 

(3,854)                      Depreciation (3,862)                      

(2,627)                      Impairment and Downward Valuations -                           

(2,855)                      (Increase) / Decrease in Creditors (9,801)                      

320                          Increase / (Decrease) in Debtors 5,110                       

1,207                       Movement in Pension Liability 1,230                       

5,628                        Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or 

deficit on the provision of services 

5,109                       

(2,181)                      (2,214)                      

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or 

deficit on the provision of services that are investing 

and financing activities

11,175                      Capital grants credited to surplus / deficit on provision 

of services 

20,671                     

-                            Proceeds from the sale of long term and short term 

investments 

-                           

61                             Other adjustments for items that are financing or 

investing activities 

-                           

11,236                     20,671                     

3,923                       Net cash flow from operating activities 16,753                     
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

 

 

Note 19: Cash Flow Statement: Inves(ng Ac(vi(es 

 

Note 20: Cash Flows from Financing Ac(vi(es 

 

Note 21: Members’ Allowances 

 

The Authority paid the following amounts to members during the year: 

 

 

Note 22: External Audit Costs 

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

80                            Allowances  82                            

80                            Total 82                            

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

33                            Fees payable with regard to external audit services 

carried out by the appointed auditor for the year

20                            

(3)                             Rebate on audit fee received from Audit Commission (2)                             

30                            Total 18                            

The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts,

certification of grant claims and statutory inspection and to non-audit services provided by the

Authority's external auditors

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

48,555                     Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment

property and intangible assets

1,230                       

30,000                     Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 65,000                     

(18,192)                    Other payments for investing activities -                           

(30,106)                    Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (70,000)                    

(2,074)                      Other receipts from investing activities (23,312)                    

28,183                     Net cash flows from investing activities (27,082)                    

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(89,000)                    Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing -                           

-                           Other receipts from financing activities -                           

36,333                     Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 2,699                       

(61)                           Other payments for financing activities -                           

(52,728)                    Net cash flows from financing activities 2,699                       
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 23: Amounts Reported for Resource Alloca(on 

 

The analysis of income and expenditure on the face of the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Service Repor&ng Code of Prac&ce (SeRCOP). 

However, decisions about resource alloca&on are taken by the Authority on the basis of budget 

reports analysed across func&ons  - i.e. split between costs rela&ng to the ITA and costs rela&ng to 

the Tyne Tunnels. These reports are prepared on a different basis from the accoun&ng policies 

used in the financial statements. In par&cular, no charges are made in rela&on to capital 

expenditure (whereas deprecia&on, revalua&on and impairment losses in excess of the balance on 

the Revalua&on Reserve and amor&sa&on are charged to services in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement; and the cost of re&rement benefits is based on cash flows (payment 

of Employers’ pension contribu&ons and deficit payments) rather than the current service cost of 

benefits accrued in the year.  

 

 

Reconcilia(on of Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services 

 

This reconcilia&on shows how the figures in the analysis of Income and Expenditure reported to 

Management relates to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement.  

 

 

 

Income and Expenditure reported to Management

2012/13

ITA Tyne Tunnels Total

£000 £000 £000

Fees, charges & other service income -                    (19,979)             (19,979)             

Government grants -                    -                    -                    

Levy income (70,207)             -                    (70,207)             

Interest (35)                    (517)                  (552)                  

Total Income (70,242)             (20,496)             (90,738)             

Employee expenses (including pensions) 455                    557                    1,012                 

Other service expenses 164                    14,077               14,241               

Support service recharges 270                    108                    378                    

Capital Payments  1,222                 970                    2,192                 

Interest Payments 1,346                 5,652                 6,998                 

Public Transport Revenue Grant to Nexus 66,922               -                    66,922               

NESTI Expenditure met from Tyne Tunnels 

reserves

-                    413                    413                    

Total Expenditure 70,379               21,777               92,156               

Net Expenditure 137                    1,281                 1,418                 
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2012/13

£000

                 1,418 

                    554 

               60,590 

               62,562 Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Net Expenditure in the Analysis reported to Management

Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not reported to 

Management in the Analysis

Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement Cost of Services

Notes to the Accounts 

Note 23 (Con(nued) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reconcilia(on to Subjec(ve Analysis 

 

This reconcilia&on shows how the figures in the analysis of income and expenditure by func&on 

relate to a subjec&ve analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

Analysis 

by function

Amounts not 

reported to 

management 

for decision 

making

Amounts 

not 

included in 

CIES Cost 

of Services

Cost of 

Services

Corporate 

Amounts

Total

2012/13 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fees, charges & other 

service income

(19,979)    -              -            (19,979)     -           (19,979)    

New Tyne Crossing 

Deferred Income Release

-           (5,109)         -            (5,109)       -           (5,109)      

Interest and investment 

income

(552)         -              552           -            (3,160)      (3,160)      

Levy income (70,207)    -              70,207      -            (70,207)    (70,207)    

Government grants and 

contributions

-           (22,083)       -            (22,083)     -           (22,083)    

Total Income (90,738)    (27,192)       70,759      (47,171)     (73,367)    (120,538)  

Employee expenses 1,012       10                (980)          42             -           42            

Other service expenses 14,241     1,414           -            15,655      -           15,655     

Support Service recharges 378          -              -            378           -           378          

Provision for Repayment 

of Debt

2,192       -              (2,192)       -            -           -           

Interest Payments 6,998       -              (6,998)       -            9,101       9,101       

Depreciation and REFCUS -           26,323         -            26,323      26,323     

Public Transport Revenue 

Grant to Nexus

66,922     -              -            66,922      -           66,922     

NESTI Expenditure met 

from Tyne Tunnels 

413          -              -            413           -           413          

Total expenditure 92,156     27,747         (10,170)     109,733    9,101       118,834   

Surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services

1,418       555              60,589      62,562      (64,266)    (1,704)      
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 23 (Con(nued) 

 

Compara(ve Figures for 2011/12 

 

Income and Expenditure reported to Management 

 

 

Reconcilia(on of Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services 

 

Reconcilia(on to Subjec(ve Analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITA Tyne Tunnels

£000 £000 £000

Fees, charges & other service income -                    (14,890)             (14,890)             

Interest (83)                    (775)                  (858)                  

Levy income (73,792)             -                    (73,792)             

Total Income (73,875)             (15,665)             (89,540)             

Employee expenses (including pensions) 432                    533                    965                    

Other service expenses 183                    6,585                 6,769                 

Support service recharges 284                    146                    430                    

Capital Payments  1,351                 711                    2,062                 

Interest Payments 1,382                 4,819                 6,201                 

Public Transport Revenue Grant to Nexus 70,323               -                    70,323               

NESTI Expenditure met from Tyne Tunnels 

reserves

-                    1,886                 1,886                 

Total Expenditure 73,956               14,680               88,636               

Net Expenditure 81                      (985)                  (904)                  

Total

2011/12

£000

                   (904)

                 1,077 

               63,664 

               63,837 

Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not reported to 

Management in the Analysis

Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement Cost of Services

Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Net Expenditure in the Analysis reported to Management
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

Note 23 (Con(nued) 

Note 24: Grant Income 

 

The Authority credited the following grants, contribu&ons and dona&ons to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement in 2012/13: 

Analysis 

by function

Amounts not 

reported to 

management 

for decision 

making

Amounts 

not 

included in 

CIES Cost 

of Services

Cost of 

Services

Corporate 

Amounts

Total

2011/12 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fees, charges & other 

service income

(14,890)    -              -            (14,890)     -           (14,890)    

New Tyne Crossing 

Deferred Income Release

-           (5,628)         -            (5,628)       -           (5,628)      

Interest and investment 

income

(858)         -              858           -            (3,588)      (3,588)      

Levy income (73,792)    -              73,792      -            (73,792)    (73,792)    

Government grants and 

contributions

-           (11,453)       -            (11,453)     -           (11,453)    

Total Income (89,540)    (17,081)       74,650      (31,971)     (77,380)    (109,351)  

Employee expenses 965          -              (947)          18             -           18            

Other service expenses 8,655       -              -            8,655        -           8,655       

Support Service 430          -              -            430           -           430          

Capital Payments 2,062       18,158         (3,838)       16,382      -           16,382     

Interest Payments 6,201       -              (6,201)       -            8,412       8,412       

Public Transport Revenue 

Grant to Nexus

70,323     -              -            70,323      -           70,323     

Total expenditure 88,636     18,158         (10,986)     95,808      8,412       104,220   

Surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services

(904)         1,077           63,664      63,837      (68,968)    (5,131)      

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

Credited to Services

(10,774)                    Local Transport Plan (14,867)                    

(426)                         Local Sustainable Transport Fund (1,254)                      

(50)                           Supporting Community Transport Fund -                           

(202)                         NESTI (3,235)                      

- Better Bus Area Fund (2,418)                      

-                           Local Contributions to Go Smarter Programme (309)                         

(11,452)                    (22,083)                    
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Notes to the Accounts 

 

 

 

Note 25: Related Par(es 

 

The Authority is required to disclose material transac&ons with related par&es - bodies or 

individuals that have the poten&al to control or influence the Authority or be controlled or 

influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of these transac&ons allows readers to assess the extent to 

which the Authority might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might 

have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Authority.  

 

Central government has effec&ve control over the general opera&ons of the Authority - it is 

responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates, provides 

funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transac&ons that the 

Authority has with other par&es (e.g. Authori&es contribu&ng to the Levy). Grants received from 

government departments are set out in the subjec&ve analysis in Note 23 on repor&ng for 

resource alloca&on decisions.  

 

Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority’s financial and opera&ng policies 

and are required to disclose all pecuniary and non-financial interests which could conflict with 

those of the Authority. No such disclosures were made in 2012/13.  

 

Under the Officer’s Code, officers must declare any poten&al contractual or financial interest in the 

work of the Authority. There were no such declara&ons during the year.  

 

Other Public Bodies (subject to common control by central government) 

The Authority has a direct rela&onship with the Passenger Transport Execu&ve (Nexus). The ITA 

sets the policy, which is then delivered by Nexus.  

 

The Clerk to the ITA, Treasurer & Deputy Clerk and the Director of Housing, Planning and 

Transporta&on are non-Execu&ve Directors of Nexus and also officers of Newcastle City Council.  

 

The table below sets out all expenditure paid to and income received from any related par&es in 

2012/13, including amounts accrued at the year end.  

2011/12

£000 £000 £000

Receipts

Paid / 

Received in 

year

 Accrued at 

year end 

Levy on Tyne and Wear Councils

Gateshead Council (12,726)          (12,021)          -                 

Newcastle City Council (18,962)          (18,323)          -                 

North Tyneside Council (13,152)          (12,447)          -                 

South Tyneside Council (10,164)          (9,638)            -                 

Sunderland City Council (18,788)          (17,778)          -                 

(73,792)          (70,207)          -                 

Newcastle City Council (NCC)

Interest on Revenue Balances (931)               (725)               -                 

Investments held on behalf of Nexus by NCC (5,000)            (10,000)          

2012/13
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Note 25 (Con(nued) 

The amount paid / received in year is shown as nil since these receipts are paid following the year 

end (i.e. the 2011/12 invoice was paid in April 2012).  

* A pro-rata alloca&on according to original contribu&ons has been used to split the NESTI 

contribu&ons held on the ITA’s Balance Sheet at the year end (excluding TWITA’s own alloca&on).  

2011/12

£000 £000 £000

Payments

Paid / 

Received in 

year

 Accrued at 

year end 

Specific Grants

Gateshead Council 2,132 1,787             562                

Newcastle City Council 2,727 2,133             143                

North Tyneside Council 1,740 1,376             404                

South Tyneside Council 1,317 1,124             229                

Sunderland City Council 2,673 2,141             498                

10,589 8,561             1,836             

Newcastle City Council

Provision of Support Services 874 668                -                 

2012/13

Contributions to NESTI held as Contributions Received*

Darlington Borough Council (358)               -                 (215)               

Durham County Council (1,214)            -                 (731)               

Gateshead Council (624)               -                 (375)               

Hartlepool Borough Council (247)               -                 (148)               

Middlesbrough Borough Council (413)               -                 (248)               

Newcastle City Council (750)               -                 (451)               

North Tyneside Council (482)               -                 (290)               

Northumberland County Council (734)               -                 (441)               

Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council (324)               -                 (195)               

South Tyneside Council (383)               -                 (231)               

Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (466)               -                 (280)               

Sunderland City Council (753)               -                 (453)               

(6,748)            -                 (4,058)            

2011/12

£000 £000 £000

Receipts

Paid / 

Received in 

year

 Accrued at 

year end 

Nexus

Loans from ITA - Principal (2,138)            -                 (2,057)            

Loans from ITA - Interest (1,817)            -                 (1,740)            

(3,955)            -                 (3,797)            

2012/13
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Note 25 (Con(nued) 

 

Note 26: Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together 

with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed 

in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority the expenditure results in 

an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure 

incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second 

part of this note.  

2011/12

£000 £000 £000

Paid / 

Received in 

year

 Accrued at 

year end 

Nexus

Revenue Support Grant 70,323 66,922           -                 

Specific Grants 2,666 309                9,025             

Grant from Metro Reinvigoration Reserve -                 -                 2,204             

72,989 67,231           11,229           

Tyne & Wear Superannuation Fund

Employers Contributions 940 980                -                 

2012/13

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

170,150                   Opening Capital Financing Requirement 214,386                   

Capital investment:

48,555                      - Property, Plant and Equipment 1,084                       

-                            - Investment Properties -                           

-                            - Non Operational assets -                           

13,119                      - Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under 

Statute

20,258                     

-                            - Loans to Other Public Bodies -                           

Sources of finance:

(2,137)                       - Capital receipts (Nexus borrowing repayments) (2,057)                      

(11,463)                     - Government grants and other contributions (20,258)                    

Sums set aside from revenue:

(1,776)                       - Direct revenue contributions -                           

(2,062)                       - Minimum revenue provision (2,192)                      

214,386                   Closing Capital Financing Requirement 211,221                   

Explanation of movements in year:

44,236                      - Increase/(Decrease) in underlying need to borrow 

(unsupported by government financial assistance)

(3,165)                      

44,236                     Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (3,165)                      
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Note 27: Leases 

Note 28: Private Finance Ini(a(ves and Similar Contracts 

 

In November 2007 the ITA entered into a 30 year contract with TT2 Ltd to construct a second 

vehicle tunnel, refurbish the exis&ng tunnel and operate both vehicle tunnels alongside the 

pedestrian and cycle tunnels.  Usage payments are driven by the level of tolls collected in each 

year. In 2012/13 the payment under the contract was £13.986m all rela&ng to usage payments. In 

2011/12 this was £53.149m (£6.522m for usage payments and capital payments of £46.627m).  

The payment under the contract in 2013/14 is es&mated to be £17.200m, all related to usage 

payments. The second tunnel was opened on 25 February 2011, with the refurbished original 

tunnel opened on 21 November 2011. Both are included on the ITA’s balance sheet.  

 

The contribu&on by TT2 is recognised as a deferred income balance (with a 2012/13 value of 

£127.723m) which is wriKen down over the remaining life of the contract.  

Operating Leases

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

25                            Not later than one year -                           

-                           Later than one year and not later than five years -                           

-                           Later than five years -                           

25                            -                           

The expenditure charged to the accounts during the year in relation to these leases was:

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

120                          Minimum lease payments 26                            

120                          26                            

In recent years, the Authority has held a number of operating leases of land and buildings for the 

New Tyne Tunnel construction. Now that construction works are complete, these leases have ended 

so there are no payments due in future years. 

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

Shown as Short Term Liability on Balance Sheet (5,501)                      (5,501)                      

Shown as Long Term Liability on Balance Sheet (127,331)                  (122,222)                  

Total New Tyne Crossing Deferred Income Balance (132,832)                  (127,723)                  

Released to CIES in year (5,628)                      (5,109)                      

The amount released to CIES in year does not match the short term figure at 31 March 2012 due to 

a change in the timing of the final capital contribution due to be released to the operator. 
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Note 28 (Con(nued) 

 

Note 29: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 

 

The Authority par&cipates in two post employment schemes: 

• The Tyne and Wear Pension Fund, administered locally by South Tyneside Council - this is a 

funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority and employees pay 

contribu&ons into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabili&es with 

investment assets.  

• Arrangements for the award of discre&onary post re&rement benefits upon early re&rement 

- this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabili&es are recognised 

when awards are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these 

pension liabili&es and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension payments are they 

eventually fall due.  

 

The table below summarises the net posi&on on the pension liabili&es shown on the Balance Sheet 

over the past five years: 

 

The main reason for the increase in the liability shown on the Balance Sheet in 2012/13 is the 

reduc&on in the discount rate used by the actuaries in the calcula&on of the present value of the 

future payments required, from 4.6% at 31 March 2012 to 4.1% at 31 March 2013. This discount 

rate is required for IAS 19 purposes to be based on the yield on high quality long term corporate 

bonds, which have fallen since 31 March 2012. A lower discount rate results in a higher present 

value being placed on the future cashflows, and the liability has therefore increased.  

 

Estimated TT2 

Payment of Toll 

Income

Deferred Income 

release

£000 £000

Payable in 2013/14 17,200                     (5,501)                      

Payable within two to five years 84,758                     (20,370)                    

Payable within six to ten years 135,340                   (25,463)                    

Payable within eleven to fifteen years 170,901                   (25,463)                    

Payable within sixteen to twenty years 201,859                   (25,463)                    

Payable within twenty-one to twenty-five years 213,352                   (25,463)                    

Total 823,410                   (127,723)                  

Financial Year 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Total assets 15,440 21,690 22,650 22,800 24,990

Total liabilities (29,280) (37,080) (26,920) (29,530) (33,240)

Net Pension Liability (13,840) (15,390) (4,270) (6,730) (8,250)
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Note 29 (Con(nued) 

 

Transac(ons Rela(ng to Post-Employment Benefits 

 

The cost of re&rement benefits must be recognised in the reported cost of services when they are 

earned, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the 

Authority is required to make against the levy is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real 

cost of post employment / re&rement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the 

Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transac&ons have been made in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and General Fund Balance via the Movement 

in Reserves Statement during the year:  

£000 £000 £000 £000

2011/12 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Cost of Services:

 - Current service cost -             10              -             -             

Financing and Investment Income and 

 - Interest cost 1,410         1,290         40              40              

 - Expected return on scheme assets (1,710)        (1,590)        -             -             

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

(300)           (290)           40              40              

Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

 - Actuarial (gains) and losses 3,540         2,670         120            80              

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

3,240         2,380         160            120            

£000 £000 £000 £000

2011/12 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13

Movement in Reserves Statement:

 - Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus 

or Deficit for the Provision of Services for post 

employment benefits in accordance with the 

300            290            (40)             (40)             

Actual amount charged against the General 

Fund Balance for pensions in the year:

 - Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 890            930            -             -             

 - Retirement benefits payable to pensioners -             -             50              50              

Local Government

Pension Scheme

Discretionary Benefits

Arrangements

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement to 31 March 2013 is a loss of £10.15m. 

Local Government

Pension Scheme

Discretionary Benefits
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Note 29 (Con(nued) 

 

 

£000 £000 £000 £000

2011/12 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13

Opening balance at 1 April 26,130       28,630       790            900            

Current service cost -             10              -             -             

Interest cost 1,410         1,290         40              40              

Actuarial (gains) and losses 2,220         3,800         120            80              

Benefits paid (1,130)        (1,460)        (50)             (50)             

Closing balance at 31 March 28,630       32,270       900            970            

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation):

Local Government

Pension Scheme

Discretionary Benefits

Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-employment Benefits

£000 £000

2011/12 2012/13

Opening balance at 1 April 22,650                     22,800                     

Expected return on assets 1,710                       1,590                       

Actuarial gains and (losses) (1,320)                      1,130                       

Employer contributions 890                          930                          

Contributions by scheme participants -                           -                           

Benefits paid (1,130)                      (1,460)                      

Entity combinations -                           -                           

Settlements -                           -                           

Closing balance at 31 March 22,800                     24,990                     

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme (plan) assets:

Local Government Pension Scheme

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available 

on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest 

investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. 

Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the 

respective markets.
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Note 29 (Con(nued) 

 

The liabili&es show the underlying commitment that the Authority has in the long run to pay post-

employment (re&rement) benefits. The total liability of £33.24m and net deficit of £8.25m has a 

substan&al impact on the net worth of the Authority as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resul&ng in 

an overall net worth of £117.45m. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean 

that the financial posi&on of the Authority remains healthy: 

• The deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contribu&ons 

over the remaining working life of employees (i.e. before payments fall due), as assessed by 

the scheme actuary. 

• Finance is only required to be raised to cover discre&onary benefits when the pensions are 

actually paid.  

 

The total contribu&on expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the 

Authority in the year to 31 March 2014 is £0.98m. Expected contribu&ons for the Discre&onary 

Benefits scheme in the year to 31 March 2014 are £0.05m.  

 

Basis for Es(ma(ng Assets and Liabili(es 

 

Liabili&es have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an 

es&mate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assump&ons about 

mortality rates, salary levels etc. Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and Discre&onary 

Benefits liabili&es have been assessed by Aon HewiK, an independent firm of actuaries, es&mates 

for the pension fund being based on the latest full valua&on of the scheme as at 31 March 2010.  

 

The principal assump&ons used by the actuary have been:  

 

Scheme History

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Present value of liabilities:

Local Government Pension Scheme (28,520)   (36,170)   (26,130)   (28,630)   (32,270)   

Discretionary Benefits (760)        (910)        (790)        (900)        (970)        

Fair value of assets in the LGPS 15,440     21,690     22,650     22,800     24,990     

Surplus/(deficit) in the scheme: (13,840)   (15,390)   (4,270)     (6,730)     (8,250)     

Local Government Pension Scheme (13,080)   (14,480)   (3,480)     (5,830)     (7,280)     

Discretionary Benefits (760)        (910)        (790)        (900)        (970)        

Total (13,840)   (15,390)   (4,270)     (6,730)     (8,250)     
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2011/12 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13

Mortality assumptions:

Men 21.6 21.7 21.6 21.7

Women 23.8 23.9 23.8 23.9

RPI Inflation 3.15% 3.25% 3.15% 3.25%

CPI Inflation 2.15% 2.35% 2.15% 2.35%

Rate of increase in salaries 3.65% 3.75% n/a n/a

Rate of increase in pensions 2.15% 2.35% 2.15% 2.35%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.60% 4.10% 4.60% 4.10%

Long-term 

expected 

rate of 

return (% 

p.a.)

Asset split 

(%)

Long-term 

expected 

rate of 

return (% 

p.a.)

Asset split 

(%)

Equities 8.1 68.5           7.8 68.0           

Property 7.6 9.2             7.3 9.0             

Government Bonds 3.1 7.1             2.8 7.0             

Corporate Bonds 3.7 11.6           3.8 11.0           

Cash 1.8 1.9             0.9 1.6             

Other 8.1 1.7             7.8 3.4             

Total 7.1 100.0         6.9 100.0         

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

% % % %

Differences between the expected and actual 

return on asset

22.2           (2.3)            (5.8)            4.5             

Experience gains and losses on liabilities 1.6             18.3           (2.9)            -             

The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in 2012/13 can be analysed

into the following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31 March 2013:

History of Experience Gains and Losses

Discretionary

Benefits

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

Local Government 

Pension Scheme

31 March 201331 March 2012

The Discretionary Benefits arrangements have no assets to cover the liabilities. The Local 

Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total 

assets held:
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Note 30: Con(ngent Liabili(es 

 

The ITA has a con&ngent liability in rela&on to any gains or losses in the Local Government Pension 

Scheme transferred assets and liabili&es that were transferred to TT2 Ltd on 1 February 2008 and 

relate to membership accrued before that date. The project agreement provides that should there 

be a shorQall in the TT2 fund at the actuarial valua&on, which can be aKributed to pre-2008 

benefits, the ITA will be required to reimburse the shorQall. At the most recent valua&on the TT2 

fund was found to be in surplus, therefore no reimbursement is currently due. The next valua&on 

will be in 2014.  

 

Under Part 1 of the Land Compensa&on Act 1973, TWITA has received a total of 215 claims from 

agents ac&ng on behalf of homeowners who allege that the value of their proper&es have been 

adversely affected by the New Tyne Crossing works. However, none of the claims received have 

included any suppor&ng jus&fica&on or evidence and so their validity cannot currently be assessed. 

This suppor&ng informa&on has been requested of the agents by TWITA but has not yet been 

received. It is therefore not possible to reliably es&mate the value or &ming of the liability at this 

point. Once the claims have been assessed, the costs of valid claims will be met from Tyne Tunnels 

reserves.  

 

 

 

 

Note 31: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 

 

The Authority’s ac&vi&es expose it to a variety of financial risks: 

• Credit risk - the possibility that other par&es might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority 

• Liquidity risk - the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its 

commitments to make payments 

• Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of 

changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements 

 

The Authority’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial 

markets and seeks to minimise poten&al adverse effects on the resources available to fund 

services. Risk management is carried out by Treasury Management officers under policies 

approved by the Authority in the Treasury Management Policy. The policy provides wriKen 

principles for overall risk management, as well as wriKen policies covering specific areas such as 

interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash.  

 

Credit Risk 

 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial ins&tu&ons, as well as credit exposures to 

the Authority’s customers. This risk is minimised through the Treasury Management Policy, which 

requires that deposits are not made with financial ins&tu&ons unless they meet iden&fied 

minimum credit criteria. The Treasury Management policy also imposes a maximum sum to be 

invested with a financial ins&tu&on located within each category. The credit criteria in respect of 

financial assets held by the Authority are detailed fully in the Annual Treasury Management 

Strategy Statement which is agreed by the ITA.  
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Note 31 (Con(nued) 

 

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial posi&on, past 

experience and other factors, within individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal 

ra&ngs within parameters set by the Authority. The Authority has a very low risk of default from its 

customers for goods and services, since these are predominantly other local authori&es or other 

public bodies such as Nexus.  

 

The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in rela&on to its investments in banks and 

building socie&es cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any ins&tu&on failing to make interest 

payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual ins&tu&on. Recent 

experience has shown that it is rare for such en&&es to be unable to meet their commitments. A 

risk of recoverability applied to all of the Authority’s deposits, but there was no evidence at 31  

March 2013 that this was likely to crystallise.  

 

Liquidity Risk 

The Authority has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash 

is available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Authority has ready access to 

borrowings from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk 

that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. 

Instead, the risk is that the Authority will be bound to replenish a significant propor&on of its 

borrowings at a &me of unfavourable interest rates. The Authority sets limits on the propor&on of 

its fixed rate borrowing during specified periods. The strategy is to ensure that maturing loans may 

be replaced through a combina&on of careful planning of new loans taken out and (where it is 

economic to do so) making early repayments. The maturity analysis of financial liabili&es is as 

follows: 

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.  

 

Market Risk 

 

Interest Rate Risk 

 

The Authority is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its 

borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the 

Authority. For example, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects: 

• Borrowings at variable rates - the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services will rise 

• Borrowings at fixed rates - the fair value of the liabili&es will fall 

 

 

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

Less than one year (4,726)                      (4,694)                      

Between one and two years (7,260)                      (7,260)                      

Between two and five years (5,333)                      (3,667)                      

More than five years (192,967)                  (191,966)                  

(210,286)                  (207,587)                  
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• Investments at variable rates - the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services will rise 

• Investments at fixed rates - the fair value of the assets will fall  

 

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings 

would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate 

borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

and affect the General Fund Balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments that 

have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  

 

The Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. Policy is to ensure that 

the level of its borrowings in variable rate loans does not expose the porQolio to excessive 

movements in interest rates. During periods of falling interest rates, and where economic 

circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure to losses. 

The risk of loss is ameliorated by the fact that a propor&on of government grant payable on 

financing costs will normally move with prevailing interest rates or the Authority’s cost of 

borrowing and provide compensa&on for a propor&on of any higher costs.  

 

The Treasury Management Team has an ac&ve strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that 

feeds into the sePng of the annual budget and which is used to update the budget during the 

year. This allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise whether 

new borrowing taken out is fixed or variable.  

 

According to this investment strategy, at 31 March 2013 if interest rates had been 1% higher with 

all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be: 

*The majority of the ITA’s borrowings are at fixed rates  

 

A decrease in the fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabili&es would have no impact on the Surplus 

or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  

 

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above, but with the movements being 

reversed.  

 

Foreign Exchange Risk 

 

The Authority has no financial assets or liabili&es denominated in foreign currencies and thus has 

no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.  

 

£000

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings* 60                            

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (604)                         

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (544)                         
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Note 32: Reconcilia(on between Explanatory Foreword and Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement 

 

This note provides a reconcilia&on between the expenditure against budget for 2012/13 reported 

in the Explanatory Foreword and the Cost of Services and Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reconcilia&on is 

split between the amounts aKributable to the ringfenced Tyne Tunnels General Fund reserves and 

the unearmarked ITA General Fund reserve.  

 

 

2012/13 ITA Tyne Tunnels Total

£000 £000 £000

Net Cost of Services 69,571           (7,009)            62,562           

Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure 806                5,135             5,941             

Taxation & Non-specific Grant Income (70,207)          -                 (70,207)          

Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services 170                (1,874)            (1,704)            

Depreciation and Impairment -                 (3,862)            (3,862)            

Write down of New Tyne Crossing Deferred Income -                 5,109             5,109             

Capital Grants applied to finance Capital Expenditure 20,672           -                 20,672           

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under 

Statute

(20,672)          -                 (20,672)          

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits in 

CIES

250                -                 250                

Employers' pension contributions and direct 

payments to pensioners payable in year

455                525                980                

Statutory provision for financing of capital investment 1,222             970                2,192             

Capital expenditure charged against the General 

Fund

-                 -                 -                 

Transfer to/from Earmarked reserves (2,032)            -                 (2,032)            

Financial Instruments Adjustment 72                  -                 72                  

NESTI expenditure funded from Tyne Tunnels -                 413                413                

Movement in Reserves / Explanatory Foreword 

basis

137                1,281             1,418             
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Note 33: Accoun(ng Policies 

 

1. General Principles 

 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transac&ons for the 2012/13 financial year 

and its posi&on at the year-end of 31 March 2013. The Authority is required to prepare an annual 

Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regula&ons, which those Regula&ons 

require to be prepared in accordance with proper accoun&ng prac&ces. These prac&ces primarily 

comprise the Code of Prac&ce on Local Authority Accoun&ng in the United Kingdom 2012/13 (the 

Code) and the Service Repor&ng Code of Prac&ce for Local Authori&es 2012/13, supported by 

Interna&onal Financial Repor&ng Standards (IFRS).  

 

The accoun&ng conven&on adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historic cost, 

modified by the revalua&on of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.  

 

2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

 

The financial statements, other than the cash flow statement, are prepared on an accruals basis. 

This means that transac&ons are reflected in the accounts of the period in which they take place, 

as opposed to the period in which payments are made or received.  

 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial ins&tu&ons repayable without 

penalty on no&ce of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in no 

more than three months or less from the date of acquisi&on and that are readily conver&ble to 

known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash 

and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdraGs that are repayable on demand and form an 

integral part of the Authority’s cash management.  

 

4. Excep(onal Items 

 

Where items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, 

either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the 

accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Authority’s 

financial performance.  

 

5. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accoun(ng Policies and Es(mates and Errors 

 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accoun&ng policies or to correct a 

material error. Changes in accoun&ng es&mates are accounted for prospec&vely, i.e. in the current 

and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.  

 

Changes in accoun&ng policies are only made when required by proper accoun&ng prac&ces or the 

change provides more reliable or relevant informa&on about the effect of transac&ons, other 

events and condi&ons on the Authority’s financial posi&on or financial performance.  

 

Where a change is made, it is applied retrospec&vely (unless stated otherwise) by adjus&ng  



79 

 

Notes to the Accounts - Accoun(ng Policies 

opening balances and compara&ve amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always 

been applied.  

 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospec&vely by amending 

opening balances and compara&ve amounts for the prior period.  

 

6. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

 

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record 

the cost of holding fixed assets during the year: 

• Deprecia&on aKributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

• Revalua&on and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the Revalua&on Reserve against which the losses can be wriKen off.  

 

The Authority is not required to raise the levy to fund deprecia&on, revalua&on and impairment 

losses or amor&sa&ons. However, it is required to make an annual contribu&on from revenue 

towards the reduc&on in its overall borrowing requirement, equal to an amount calculated on a 

prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with statutory guidance.  

 

Deprecia&on, revalua&on and impairment losses and amor&sa&ons are therefore replaced by the 

contribu&on in the General Fund Balance (Minimum Revenue Provision), by way of an adjus&ng 

transac&on with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 

difference between the two.  

 

7.   Employee Costs 

 

Following the transfer of the Tyne Tunnels to the Concessionaire in 2008, the ITA only has one 

employee.  The full cost of the employee, including holidays, is charged to the accounts of the 

period within which the employee worked.  

 

Employee costs in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement include the direct 

salaries and employers’ contribu&ons for Na&onal Insurance and contribu&ons to the Local 

Government Pension Scheme in respect of that member of staff. Officers of the Authority and 

other professional and technical support staff are primarily employed by the Lead Authority, 

Newcastle City Council. Their costs are charged to the ITA, together with a propor&on of overhead 

costs, on the basis of es&mated &me spent on ITA business by the staff involved.  

 

Under the Code, an accrual is required for the cost of holiday en&tlements (or any form of leave, 

e.g. &me off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can 

carry forward into the next financial year. Since the ITA only has one employee, this amount is not 

material and so an accrual will not be made.  

 

8.  Pensions 

 

The ITA par&cipates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, which provides members with 

defined benefits rela&ng to pay and service.  Its pension obliga&ons relate primarily to former 

employees.  

 

The relevant fund is the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund administered by South Tyneside 
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Metropolitan Borough Council, from whom a copy of the annual report may be obtained. The Fund 

website may be visited at www.twpf.info.  

 

The liabili&es of the pension fund aKributable to the ITA are included in the 

Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the 

future payments that will be made in rela&on to re&rement benefits earned to date by employees, 

based on assump&ons about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projec&ons of 

projected earnings for current employees; 

 

The assets of the pension fund aKributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at 

their fair value: 

• Quoted securi&es at current bid price 

• Unquoted securi&es based on professional es&mate 

• Uni&sed securi&es at current bid price 

• Property at market value 

 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:  

 

a. Current service cost - the increase in liabili&es as a result of years of service earned this year 

- allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for 

which the employees worked; 

b. Past service cost - the increase in liabili&es arising from current year decisions whose effect 

relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of 

Non-Distributed Costs; 

c. Interest cost - the expected increase in the present value of liabili&es during the year as they 

move one year closer to being paid - debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 

d. Expected return on assets - the annual investment return on the fund assets aKributable to 

the Authority, based on an average of the expected long-term return - credited to the 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement; 

e. Gains or losses on se5lements and curtailments - the result of ac&ons to relieve the 

Authority of liabili&es or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of 

benefits of employees - debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non-

Distributed Costs; 

f. Actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 

have not coincided with assump&ons made at the last actuarial valua&on or because the 

actuaries have updated their assump&ons - debited to the Pensions Reserve; and 

g. Contribu(ons paid to the pension fund  - cash paid as employer’s contribu&ons to the 

pension fund in seKlement of liabili&es; not accounted for as an expense.  

 

In rela&on to re&rement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be 

charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in 

the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accoun&ng standards. In the 

Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropria&ons to and from the 

Pensions Reserve to remove the no&onal debits and credits for re&rement benefits and replace 

them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts 
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payable by unpaid at the year-end. The nega&ve balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve 

thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 

re&rement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.  

 

Further details are provided in Note 29.  

 

9. Events ANer the Balance Sheet Date 

 

Events aGer the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 

occur between the end of the repor&ng period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is 

authorised for issue. Two types of events can be iden&fied: 

• Those that provide evidence of condi&ons that existed at the end of the repor&ng period - 

the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and  

• Those that are indica&ve of condi&ons that arose aGer the repor&ng period - the Statement 

of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would 

have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their 

es&mated financial effect.  

 

Events taking place aGer the date of authorisa&on for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 

Accounts.  

 

10. Financial Instruments 

 

Financial Liabili(es 

 

Financial Liabili&es are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are ini&ally measured at fair value and are 

carried at their amor&sed cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are 

based on the carrying amount of the liability, mul&plied by the effec&ve rate of interest for the 

instrument. The effec&ve interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts es&mated future cash 

payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.  

 

For most of the borrowings that the Authority has, this means that the amount presented in the 

Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged 

to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year 

according to the loan agreement.  

 

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early seKlement of borrowing are credited and debited to 

the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase / seKlement. However, where repurchase has 

taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan porQolio that involves the modifica&on or 

exchange of exis&ng instruments, the premium or discount is respec&vely deducted from or added 

to the amor&sed cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the 

effec&ve interest rate.  

 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement, regula&ons allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread 
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over future years. The Authority has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was 

remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was 

repaid. The reconcilia&on of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer 

to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

 

Financial Assets 

 

Financial assets are classified into two types: 

• Loans and receivables - assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted 

in an ac&ve market; and  

• Available for sale assets - assets that have a quoted market price and / or do not have fixed 

or determinable payments.  

 

Loans and Receivables 

 

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are ini&ally measured at fair value. They 

are subsequently measured at their amor&sed cost. Annual credits to the Financing and 

Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset mul&plied by the 

effec&ve rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Authority has made, 

this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable 

(plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

 

Where assets are iden&fied as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 

payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is wriKen down and a charge made 

to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing and Investment 

Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The 

impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value 

of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effec&ve interest rate. 

 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecogni&on of an asset are credited or debited to the 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement. 

 

Available for Sale Assets 

 

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party 

to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are ini&ally measured and carried at fair 

value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing and 

Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement for interest receivable are based on the amor&sed cost of the asset mul&plied by the 

effec&ve rate of interest for the instrument. Where there are no fixed or determinable payments, 

income (e.g. dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

when it becomes receivable by the Authority. Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair 

value. Values are based on the following principles: 
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• Instruments with quoted market prices - the market price; 

• Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow analysis; 

and  

• Equity shares with no quoted market prices - independent appraisal of company valua&ons.  

 

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the gain/loss is 

recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revalua&on of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets. The 

excep&on is where impairment losses have been incurred – these are debited to the Financing and 

Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement, along with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale 

Reserve. 

Where assets are iden&fied as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 

payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value 

falls below cost, the asset is wriKen down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment 

Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the 

asset has fixed or determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference 

between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at 

the asset’s original effec&ve interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any 

shorQall of fair value against the acquisi&on cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment 

and amor&sa&on). 

 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecogni&on of the asset are credited or debited to the 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the 

Available-for-Sale Reserve.  

 

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any 

impairment losses). 

 

11. Government Grants and Contribu(ons 

 

The provisions rela&ng to Grants and Contribu&ons apply to both revenue and capital grants and 

contribu&ons. Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third 

party contribu&ons and dona&ons are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable 

assurance that: 

• The Authority will comply with the condi&ons aKached to the payments; and 

• The grants or contribu&ons will be received. 

 

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement un&l condi&ons aKached to the grant or contribu&on have been sa&sfied. 

Condi&ons are s&pula&ons that specify that the future economic benefits or service poten&al 

embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribu&on are required to be consumed by 

the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service poten&al must be returned to the 

transferor.  

 

Monies advanced as grants and contribu&ons for which condi&ons have not been sa&sfied are 

carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When condi&ons are sa&sfied, the grant or contribu&on 

is credited to the relevant service line (aKributable revenue grants and contribu&ons) or Taxa&on 
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and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they 

are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the 

grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied 

Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in 

the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they 

have been applied to fund capital expenditure.  

 

 

 

12. Leases 

 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substan&ally all the 

risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to 

the lessee. All other leases are classified as opera&ng leases. 

 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 

separately for classifica&on. 

 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an 

asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the 

arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. 

 

All ITA leases have been reviewed and are classified as opera&ng leases.  

 

(a) The Authority as Lessee 

 

Opera(ng Leases 

 

Rentals paid under opera&ng leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiPng from use of the leased property, 

plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this 

does not match the paKern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of 

the lease). 

 

(b) The Authority as Lessor 

 

Opera(ng Leases 

 

Where the Authority grants an opera&ng lease over a property or an item of plant or 

equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other 

Opera&ng Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are 

made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the paKern of 

payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Ini&al direct costs 

incurred in nego&a&ng and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant 

asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the produc&on or supply of goods or 

services, for rental to others, or for administra&ve purposes and that are expected to be used 

during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

 

Recogni(on  

 

Expenditure on the acquisi&on, crea&on or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 

capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 

service poten&al associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be 

measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s poten&al to deliver 

future economic benefits or service poten&al (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an 

expense when it is incurred. 

Measurement 

 

Assets are ini&ally measured at cost, comprising: 

 

The purchase price; 

Any costs aKributable to bringing the asset to the loca&on and condi&on necessary for it 

 to be capable of opera&ng in the manner intended by management; and 

The ini&al es&mate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the 

 site on which it is located. 

 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 

acquisi&on does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a varia&on in the cash flows 

of the Authority). In the laKer case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the 

acquisi&on is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Authority. 

 

Donated assets are measured ini&ally at fair value. The difference between fair value and 

any considera&on paid is credited to the Taxa&on and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the dona&on has been made 

condi&onally. Un&l condi&ons are sa&sfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. 

Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 

reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement. 

 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

 

Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construc&on – depreciated historical 

cost; 

All other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its 

exis&ng use (exis&ng use value – EUV). 

 

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, 

depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an es&mate of fair value. 

 

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 

historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value. 
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Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that 

their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a 

minimum every five years. This work is carried out on behalf of the Authority by the Property 

Services Division of the lead authority. The first such revalua&on took place in 1999/00, with the 

most recent revalua&on completed during 2011/12. These revalua&ons are detailed within the 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements.  

 

Increases in valua&ons are matched by credits to the Revalua&on Reserve to recognise unrealised 

gains. Excep&onally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 

Where decreases in value are iden&fied, they are accounted for by: 

• Where there is a balance of revalua&on gains for the asset in the Revalua&on Reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is wriKen down against that balance (up to the amount of the 

accumulated gains); and 

• Where there is no balance in the Revalua&on Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 

amount of the asset is wriKen down against the relevant service line(s) in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

 

The Revalua&on Reserve contains revalua&on gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of 

its formal implementa&on. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 

Adjustment Account. 

 

De Minimis Levels 

 

The use of a de-minimis level for capital expenditure means that in the above categories assets 

below the de-minimis level are charged to the revenue account and are not classified as capital 

expenditure, i.e. the asset is not included in the balance sheet unless they are part of an overall 

project cos&ng more than the established de-minimis level.  For all capital expenditure the de 

minimis level is £10,000 

 

Impairment 

 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indica&on that an asset may be 

impaired. Where indica&ons exist and any possible differences are es&mated to be material, the 

recoverable amount of the asset is es&mated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of 

the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shorQall. 

 

Where impairment losses are iden&fied, they are accounted for by: 

 

Where there is a balance of revalua&on gains for the asset in the Revalua&on Reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is wriKen down against that balance (up to the amount of the 

accumulated gains); and 

Where there is no balance in the Revalua&on Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 

amount of the asset is wriKen down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service 

line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original 

loss, adjusted for deprecia&on that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 

 

Deprecia(on 

 

Deprecia&on is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systema&c 

alloca&on of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An excep&on is made for assets 

without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for 

use (i.e. assets under construc&on).  

 

Deprecia&on on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets is calculated by taking the asset value at 

31 March 2013, divided by remaining life expectancy. Deprecia&on is therefore charged in the year 

of acquisi&on, but not the year of disposal. 

Deprecia&on on vehicles and plant is based on a thirty year useful economic life, since this class of 

asset relates to assets which were transferred to the concessionaire, TT2 Ltd at the 

commencement of the thirty year contract. These assets (or their equivalent replacements) are to 

be returned to the ITA at the end of the contract.  

 

The Tyne Vehicle Tunnels are depreciated over a 120 year useful life and the Tyne Pedestrian and 

Cycle Tunnels over a 40-120 year.  

 

Revalua&on gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 

value deprecia&on charged on assets and the deprecia&on that would have been chargeable based 

on their historic cost being transferred each year from the Revalua&on Reserve to the Capital 

Adjustment Account.  

 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment assets has major components whose cost is 

significant in rela&on to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. In 

the most recent valua&ons of the Tyne Tunnels, it was assessed that although Mechanical and 

Electrical Service and the Toll Plaza have an economic life of 20 years, these formed less than 20% 

of the overall valua&on and have not therefore been classed as significant components.   

 

Disposals 

 

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The 

balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be 

used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Authority’s underlying need to borrow 

(the capital financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General 

Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

 

14. Public Private Partnership (PPP) Contracts 

 

Public Private Partnerships are agreements to receive services and provide capital jointly with the 

private sector. The New Tyne Crossing Partnership is judged to be such an arrangement.  

 

The Code requires these arrangements to be assessed under an applica&on of the principles within 

Interna&onal Financial Repor&ng Interpreta&on CommiKee 12 (IFRIC 12) ‘Service Concessions’.  
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Arrangements fall in the scope of the Applica&on where both of the following ‘IFRIC 12’  criteria 

are met: 

• The public sector en&ty (‘grantor’) controls or regulates the services that the operator must 

provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; and 

• The grantor controls, through ownership, beneficial en&tlement or otherwise, any significant 

residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the service arrangement. 

 

For any service concession within the scope of the Applica&on, the grantor will recognise the cost 

of the property, plant and equipment underlying the service concession as a tangible fixed asset. 

The New Tyne Crossing is considered to meet both of the IFRIC 12 criteria, and the ITA therefore 

recognises the costs of the new tunnel on its Balance Sheet.  

 

In most arrangements within the scope of the Applica&on, the grantor will account for the 

arrangement’s financing by recording and measuring a long term liability in accordance with IAS17. 

This treatment reflects an obliga&on to pay the operator for the full value of the asset along with 

the operator’s cost of finance. However in the New Tyne Crossing Project, TT2 Ltd. (the Operator) 

receives a defined propor&on of the total toll revenue and uses this to meet its cost of 

construc&ng and opera&ng the new tunnel and the exis&ng tunnel. The ITA may therefore have no 

long term obliga&on to transfer economic resources to TT2 Ltd. and hence should not recognise a 

liability. 

 

The provisions within the Payment Mechanism for payment of toll revenue to the operator are as 

follows: 

• In each month the ITA pays a Shadow Toll to the Operator; this being a fixed amount per 

vehicle adjusted for changes in RPI; 

• Throughout the Term, Formula Tolls for each vehicle type are defined to equal the 

corresponding vehicle type Shadow Tolls; 

• The Formula Tolls are the ini&ally-defined sequence of tolls to be charged to users and 

collected by the ITA. If the ITA varies a Real Toll from its corresponding Formula Toll, the 

Operator is compensated for the effect of this adjustment on demand.  

 

The ITA therefore has no exposure to any risk and reward associated with the Operator revenue, 

but only an executory contract to transfer the Operator’s share of total revenues to the operator 

as it is collected.  

 

It therefore follows from this conclusion that the ITA has no long-term obliga&on to transfer 

economic resources to the Operator, since the Operator revenue is in substance transferred 

directly to it. The ITA therefore should not recognise a long term liability to finance the project 

assets.  

 

In rela&on to such an arrangement, the Code and the accompanying guidance do not provide clear 

guidance. However, the guidance notes accompanying the Code suggest that the credit that 

matches the asset should be a deferred income balance. The ITA has therefore recognised a 

deferred credit balance, added to as each of Phase 1 and Phase 2 are completed, and equal to the 

fair value of the asset addi&on under each Phase. This balance is then released to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement over the life of the contract.  
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Notes to the Accounts - Accoun(ng Policies 

15. Provisions 

 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or 

construc&ve obliga&on that probably requires seKlement by a transfer of economic benefits 

or service poten&al and a reliable es&mate can be made of the amount of the obliga&on. For 

example, the Authority may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making 

of a seKlement or the payment of compensa&on. 

 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Authority becomes aware of 

the obliga&on, and are measured at the best es&mate at the balance sheet date of the 

expenditure required to seKle the obliga&on, taking into account relevant risks and uncertain&es. 

 

When payments are eventually  made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance 

Sheet. Es&mated seKlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it becomes 

less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower seKlement 

than an&cipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.  

Where some or all of the payment required to seKle a provision is expected to be recovered from 

another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant 

service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Authority seKles the 

obliga&on.  

 

16. Con(ngent Liabili(es 

 

A con&ngent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible 

obliga&on whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 

future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Con&ngent liabili&es also arise in 

circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an 

ouQlow of resources will be required or the amount of the obliga&on cannot be measured reliably. 

 

Con&ngent liabili&es are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 

accounts. 

 

17. Reserves 

 

The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 

con&ngencies. Reserves are created by appropria&ng amounts out of the General Fund Balance in 

the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is 

incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve 

is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement 

so that there is no net charge against the levy for the expenditure. 

 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accoun&ng processes for non-current assets, financial 

instruments, re&rement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the 

Authority – these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
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Notes to the Accounts - Accoun(ng Policies 

18. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 

 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that 

does not result in the crea&on of a non-current asset as been charged as expenditure to the 

relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the 

Authority has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from exis&ng capital resources or 

by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance 

to the Capital Adjustment Account then reversed out the amounts charged so that there is no 

impact on the levy.  

 

19. VAT 

 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from HM 

Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 

 

20. Overheads 

 

The costs of central support services e.g. Finance and Legal Services have been allocated to the ITA 

on the basis of Service Level Agreements in accordance with guidance given by the Chartered 

Ins&tute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). A percentage is allocated to the ITA, Tyne 

Tunnels and the New Tyne Crossing project in accordance with es&mated work done on each area.  

 

21. Tyne Tunnel Income 

 

The majority of the income from tolls is received on a cash basis and so no accruals are necessary. 

However, prepayments on permit accounts are also received. The balance outstanding on the 

permit account has been accrued.  

 

22. Group Accounts 

 

The ITA is required by the Code of Prac&ce on Local Authority Accoun&ng in the United Kingdom 

2012/13 to produce Group Accounts to include services provided to Council Tax payers in Tyne and 

Wear by organisa&ons other than the Authority itself in which the Authority has an interest.  

 

Although there has been no defini&ve ruling by CIPFA or central government in rela&on to 

Integrated Transport Authori&es and Passenger Transport Execu&ves, it is recognised that the 

accounts of Nexus fall within the defini&on of a subsidiary. As such, group accounts have been 

prepared on the basis of a full consolida&on of the financial transac&ons and balances of the ITA 

and Nexus. Nexus has been incorporated as a subsidiary, whereby the accounts of the two 

organisa&ons are combined and any intra-group transac&ons are cancelled out.  

 

For the 2012/13 accounts, the ITA has fully complied with the requirements of the Code, providing 

Group figures for the 2012/13 accounts and comparators for 2011/12. From 2010/11, Passenger 

Transport Execu&ves have been required to produce their accounts under Interna&onal Financial 

Repor&ng Standards, and as if the proper prac&ces in rela&on to accounts applicable to a local 

authority were, so far as appropriate, applicable to an Execu&ve. The group financial statements 

are prepared in accordance with the policies set out in the Statement of Accoun&ng Policies above.  
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Sec(on 3 
 

Tyne & Wear Integrated 

Transport Authority 
 

Group Accounts for the year ended 31 

March 2013 
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Group Movement in Reserves Statement 

 

ITA 

Usable 

Reserves

ITA 

Unusable 

Reserves

Total ITA 

Reserves

Authority 

Share of 

Nexus

Total 

Group 

Reserves

 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

 Balance at 1 April 2012     (58,634)     (59,862)   (118,496)   (366,388)   (484,884)

 Movement in reserves during 2012/13 

 Surplus or (deficit) on provision of 

services 

      (1,704)              -         (1,704)     (35,683)     (37,387)

 Other Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 

             -          2,750        2,750        8,495      11,245 

 Total Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 

      (1,704)        2,750        1,046     (27,188)     (26,142)

 Adjustments between accounting basis 

and funding basis under regulations  

       5,154       (5,154)              -                -                -   

 Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers 

to Earmarked Reserves 

       3,450       (2,404)        1,046     (27,188)     (26,142)

 Transfer to/from Earmarked Reserves               -                -                -                -                -   

 Increase/Decrease in 2012/13        3,450       (2,404)        1,046     (27,188)     (26,142)

 Balance at 31 March 2013 carried 

forward 

    (55,184)     (62,266)   (117,450)   (393,576)   (511,026)

 Usable 

Reserves 

 Unusable 

Reserves 

 Total 

Group 

Reserves  

 £000  £000  £000 

 ITA      (55,184)     (62,266)   (117,450)

 Nexus      (36,047)   (357,529)   (393,576)

 Total  (91,231)   (419,795) (511,026) 

 Analysis of Usable and Unusable Reserves 

 Balance at 31 March 2013 

carried forward 
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Group Movement in Reserves Statement 

 

Compara(ve Figures for 2011/12 

 

 

ITA 

Usable 

Reserves

ITA 

Unusable 

Reserves

Total ITA 

Reserves

Authority 

Share of 

Nexus

Total 

Group 

Reserves

 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

 Balance at 1 April 2011 (56,098)       (60,329)   (116,427)   (353,211)   (469,638)

 Movement in reserves during 2011/12 

 Surplus or (deficit) on provision of 

services 

      (5,132)              -         (5,132)     (36,825)     (41,957)

 Other Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 

             -          3,063        3,063      23,648      26,711 

 Total Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 

      (5,132)        3,063       (2,069)     (13,177)     (15,246)

 Adjustments between accounting basis 

and funding basis under regulations  

       2,596       (2,596)              -                -                -   

 Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers 

to Earmarked Reserves 

      (2,536)           467       (2,069)     (13,177)     (15,246)

 Transfer to/from Earmarked Reserves               -                -                -                -   

 Increase/Decrease in 2011/12       (2,536)           467       (2,069)     (13,177)     (15,246)

 Balance at 31 March 2012 carried 

forward 

    (58,634)     (59,862)   (118,496)   (366,388)   (484,884)

 Usable 

Reserves 

 Unusable 

Reserves 

 Total 

Group 

Reserves  

 £000  £000  £000 

 ITA      (58,634)     (59,862)   (118,496)

 Nexus      (35,497)   (330,891)   (366,388)

 Total  (94,131)   (390,753) (484,884) 

 Balance at 31 March 2012 

carried forward 

 Analysis of Usable and Unusable Reserves 
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Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 

 

Gross 

Expenditure

Gross 

Income

Net 

Expenditure

Gross 

Expenditure

Gross 

Income

Net 

Expenditure

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

2,442         -          2,442         Corporate and 

Democratic Core

2,732         -          2,732         

Highways and Transport -             

13,328       (20,519)   (7,191)         - Tyne Tunnels 18,079       (25,088)   (7,009)        

165,607     (94,394)   71,213        - Other Highways and 

Transport Services

172,554     (105,527) 67,027       

147            -          147             Non-Distributed Costs 133            -          133            

181,524     (114,913) 66,612       Cost of Services 193,498     (130,615) 62,883       

8,830         (3,061)     5,769         Financing and 

Investment Income and 

Expenditure (Note 3)

9,502         (2,964)     6,538         

(114,338)    Non-Specific Grant 

Income (Note 5)

(107,382)    

-             Loss on disposal of non-

current assets

574            

(41,957)      (Surplus) / Deficit on 

Provision of Services

(37,387)      

608            Taxation Charge for the 

Year

95              

(597)           Surplus / (Deficit) on 

Revaluation of Fixed 

Assets (Note 6)

-             

26,700       Actuarial (Gains) / 

Losses on Pension Fund 

Assets and Liabilities 

(Note 14)

11,150       

26,711       Other Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure

11,245       

(15,246)      Total Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure

(26,142)      

2012/132011/12
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Group Balance Sheet 

 

 

 

Treasurer’s Cer(ficate 

 

I cer&fy that the accounts set out on pages 93 to 113 present a true and fair view of the financial 

posi&on of the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority as at 31 March 2013 

 

Signed 

 

 

 

 

 

Treasurer  

Date:  

31 March 

2012 Notes

31 March 

2013

£000 £000

790,800      Property, Plant and Equipment 6 815,139      

2,190          Intangible Assets 7 2,338          

1                 Long Term Investments 8 1                 

792,991      Long Term Assets 817,478      

23,000        Short Term Investments 8 18,000        

1,432          Inventories 1,136          

26,664        Short Term Debtors 9 30,303        

95,772        Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 101,728      

146,868      Current Assets 151,167      

(4,726)         Short Term Borrowing 8 (4,694)         

(27,608)       Short Term Creditors 11 (32,754)       

(5,501)         New Tyne Crossing - Deferred Income (5,501)         

(8,637)         Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance 12 (10,125)       

(46,472)       Current Liabilities (53,074)       

(127,331)     New Tyne Crossing - Deferred Income (122,222)     

(845)            Provisions 13 (1,049)         

(7,670)         Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance 12 (6,379)         

(205,560)     Long Term Borrowing 8 (202,893)     

(61,920)       Other Long Term Liabilities 14 (66,730)       

(5,177)         Deferred Tax Liability 15 (5,272)         

(408,503)     Long Term Liabilities (404,545)     

484,884      Net Assets 511,026      

(94,131)       Usable Reserves 16 (91,231)       

(390,753)     Unusable Reserves 17 (419,795)     

(484,884)     (511,026)     
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Group Cash Flow Statement 

 

 

2011/12 Notes 2012/13

£000 £000

(41,957)                    Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of 

services

(37,387)                    

(1,688)                      Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services for non cash movements

19 (19,456)                    

50,017                     Adjustments for items included in the net 

surplus or deficit on the provision of services 

that are investing and financing activities

19 56,539                     

6,371                       Net cash flows from Operating Activities (304)                         

50,252                     Investing activities 20 (9,803)                      

(50,760)                    Financing activities 21 4,151                       

5,864                       Net increase or decrease in cash and cash 

equivalents

(5,956)                      

(101,636)                  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 

the reporting period

(95,772)                    

(95,772)                    Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

reporting period

10 (101,728)                  
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 1: Group Accounts 

 

Under the Code of Prac&ce for Local Authority Accoun&ng 2012/13, authori&es with interests in 

subsidiaries, associates and/or joint ventures (jointly controlled en&&es) shall prepare Group 

Accounts in addi&on to their single en&ty financial statements, unless their interest is considered 

not material. 

 

Nexus is the only subsidiary for the Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority, and the group 

accounts have been prepared on a consolida&on basis. From 2010/11, Passenger Transport 

Execu&ves (including Nexus) have a legal requirement under the Accoun&ng and Audit Regula&ons 

2011 to produce their single en&ty accounts on an IFRS basis in accordance with the Code of 

Prac&ce. The accoun&ng policies adopted by Nexus are now largely aligned with those of the ITA, 

with the following minor differences: 

Deferred Tax 

The ITA does not require a policy on Deferred Tax. Deferred taxa&on (which arises from the 

differences in the &ming of the recogni&on of items, principally deprecia&on, in the accounts and 

by the tax authori&es) has been calculated by Nexus on the liability method. Deferred tax is 

provided on &ming differences which will probably reverse, at the rates of tax likely to be in force 

at the &me of reversal. 

 

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets  

 

Nexus uses the following es&mated useful lives for each class of assets: 

 

Freehold buildings  40 years 

Short leasehold buildings over the lease term 

Infrastructure assets  20 to 50 years 

Plant and Equipment  5 to 30 years 

Vehicles    5 to 10 years 

Marine Vessels   30 years 

Intangibles    5 to 10 years 

 

Useful lives used by the ITA can be found on p. 49 of the single en&ty accounts.  

Nexus’ policy is to commence deprecia&on on assets with effect from the month following 

capitalisa&on, whereas the ITA charges a full year of deprecia&on in the year of acquisi&on.  

Nexus carries out annual reviews of the es&mated remaining life and current carrying amount of 

assets, ensuring that significant assets with a life greater than five years are reviewed annually. 

The ITA has a rolling five year programme of revalua&ons, as set out on p. 49.  

 

Where Group Accounts are required, authori&es must produce the main financial statements and 

the disclosure notes which add value to the understanding of the accounts. Disclosure notes have 

been produced to add more detail where the Group Accounts are materially different from the 

single en&ty accounts.  

 

Copies of the single en&ty accounts for Nexus are available from www.nexus.org.uk 
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 2: Integrated Transport Authority Lead Officers 

 

The ITA is principally advised by three senior officers employed by the lead Authority. These 

officers are also non-execu&ve directors of Nexus: 

 
 

The Nexus Board comprises the above officers and the following Nexus Directors: 

Director General      Bernard Garner 

Director of Finance and Resources   John Fenwick 

Director of Rail and Infrastructure   Ken Mackay 

Director of Customer Services   Tobyn Hughes 

Non-Execu(ve Director    Peter Wignall 

Group Note 3: Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

 

Group Note 4: Grant Income Credited to Services 

 

The following grants and contribu&ons were credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services:  

Responsibility Title Officer 

Policy / Legal / Administra&on Clerk 

Ac&ng Clerk 

Ac&ng Deputy Clerk 

Barry Rowland (to 31/08/12) 

Paul Woods (from 01/09/12) 

David Slater (from 01/09/12) 

  

Financial Advice Treasurer Paul Woods 

  

Lead Policy Advisor Director of Housing,     

Planning and Transport 

Harvey Emms 

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

8,830         9,502         

(1,080)        (970)           

(1,981)        (1,994)        

5,769         6,538         

Interest payable and similar charges

Interest receivable and similar income

Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(426)                         Local Sustainable Transport Fund (1,254)                      

(10,774)                    Local Transport Plan (14,867)                    

(202)                         North East Smart Ticketing Initiative (3,235)                      

(24,746)                    Metro Rail Grant (24,674)                    

-                           Better Bus Area Fund (2,418)                      

(4,637)                      Heavy Rail Grant (3,455)                      

(70)                           Other Grants and Contributions (347)                         

(40,855)                    Total (50,250)                    
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 5: Non-Specific Grant Income 

 

The following amounts are included within the CIES line ‘Non-Specific Grant Income’: 

 

Group Note 6: Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

 

 

 

Movements in 2012/13:

Other 

Land and 

Buildings

Vehicles, 

Plant, 

Furniture & 

Equipment

Infrastructure 

Assets

Assets Under 

Construction

Total  Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2012 12,971    28,264       915,050          56,482         1,012,767         

Additions -          -             683                 48,820         49,503              

Disposals -          (23)             (759)                -               (782)                  

Transfers from assets 

under construction

-          2,560         67,946            (71,066)        (560)                  

At 31 March 2013 12,971    30,801       982,920          34,236         1,060,928         

At 1 April 2012 (430)        (20,282)      (201,255)         -               (221,967)           

Depreciation charge (37)          (1,374)        (22,615)           -               (24,026)             

Derecognition - disposals -          23              182                 -               205                   

At 31 March 2013 (468)        (21,633)      (223,688)         -               (245,789)           

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2013 12,503    9,168         759,232          34,236         815,139            

At 31 March 2012 12,541    7,982         713,795          56,482         790,800            

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(73,792)      (70,207)      

(40,546)      Nexus Capital Grants (37,175)      

(114,338)    (107,382)    

Levy on Tyne and Wear Authorities
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 6 (Con(nued) 

 

 

 

 

Movements in 2011/12:

Other 

Land and 

Buildings

Vehicles, 

Plant, 

Furniture & 

Equipment

Infrastructure 

Assets

Assets Under 

Construction

Total  Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2011 16,965    32,455       865,822          40,083         955,325            

Additions -          -             21,499            42,188         63,687              

Revaluation 

increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the 

Revaluation Reserve

-          597            -                  -               597                   

Revaluation 

increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the 

Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services

-          -             (2,627)             -               (2,627)               

Disposals -          (147)           (58)                  -               (205)                  

Derecognition - Other (222)        (1,968)        (10)                  -               (2,200)               

Transfers from assets 

under construction

-          901            24,166            (25,067)        -                    

Assets reclassified (3,772)     (3,108)        6,258              (722)             (1,344)               

Other movements in cost or 

valuation

-          (466)           -                  -               (466)                  

At 31 March 2012 12,971    28,264       915,050          56,482         1,012,767         

At 1 April 2011 (2,556)     (22,415)      (177,772)         -               (202,743)           

Depreciation charge (140)        (1,241)        (20,349)           -               (21,730)             

Derecognition - disposals -          100            35                   -               135                   

Derecognition - other 222         1,968         10                   -               2,200                

Assets reclassified 2,044      1,306         (3,179)             -               171                   

At 31 March 2012 (430)        (20,282)      (201,255)         -               (221,967)           

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2012 12,541    7,982         713,795          56,482         790,800            

At 31 March 2011 14,409    10,040       688,050          40,083         752,582            

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 7: Intangible Assets 

Group Note 8: Financial Instruments 

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

Long Term Investments:

1                              Unquoted Equity Investment at cost 1                              

Short Term Investments:

23,000                     Bank deposits 18,000                     

Short Term Debtors:

26,664                     Short Term Debtors 30,303                     

Borrowing:

(4,726)                      Short term borrowing (4,694)                      

(205,560)                  Financial liabilities at amortised cost - long term 

borrowing

(202,893)                  

(210,286)                  (207,587)                  

Other Long Term Liabilities:

(61,920)                    Pensions Liability (66,730)                    

Short Term Creditors:

(27,608)                    Short Term Creditors (32,754)                    

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

Cost or Valuation

1,954                       At 1 April 3,015                       

Additions:

722                          Transfers from assets under construction 560                          

622                          Assets reclassified -                           

(283)                         Derecognition - other -                           

3,015                       At 31 March 3,575                       

Depreciation and Impairment

682                          Accumulated at 1 April 825                          

256                          Depreciation provided during the period 412                          

170                          Assets reclassified -                           

(283)                         Derecognition - other -                           

825 Accumulated at 31 March 1,237

2,190 Net Book Value                         2,338 
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 9: Short Term Debtors 

 

 

Group Note 10: Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

 

Group Note 11: Short Term Creditors 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

20,058                     Central government bodies                       17,036 

5,829                       Other local authorities                         7,768 

-                           NHS bodies                                5 

73                            Public corporations and trading funds                            113 

704                          Other entities and individuals                         5,381 

26,664                     Total 30,303                      

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

67,312                     Cash at bank and in hand 74,778

28,460                     Short-term deposits with building societies 26,950

95,772                     Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 101,728                   

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

(1,076)                      Central government bodies (1,139)                      

(4,115)                      Other local authorities (3,130)                      

(3)                             NHS Bodies (4)                             

(7)                             Public Corporations (16)                           

(22,407)                    Other entities and individuals (28,466)                    

(27,608)                    Total (32,754)                    
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

Group Note 12: Grants and Contribu(ons Receipts in Advance 

 

The Authority has received a number of grants and contribu&ons that have yet to be recognised as 

income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as they have condi&ons 

aKached to them that will require the monies to be returned to the giver if they are not fulfilled.  

 

The balances at the year end are as follows: 

Group Note 13: Provisions 

 

Provisions in the Group Accounts relate wholly to Nexus.  

 

Provisions are established to meet liabili&es or losses that are likely or certain to be incurred, but 

where the amounts or &mings are uncertain. Provisions during the year can be analysed as follows:  

 

(1) Public liability claims for minor accidents to the public, and Employer’s liability claims for 

work related illnesses received for incidents prior to the year end.  

(2) Costs for certain employment related obliga&ons and benefits. 

(3) Claims for addi&onal costs associated with the Nexus capital programme.  

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

(2,779)                      Local Transport Plan (303)                         

(4,478)                      Local Sustainable Transport Fund - Schools Go Smarter (3,331)                      

-                           Local Sustainable Transport Fund - Go Smarter to Work (4,888)                      

(8,114)                      North East Smart Ticketing Initiative (4,879)                      

-                           Better Bus Area Fund (2,554)                      

(936)                         Other (549)                         

(16,307)                    Total (16,504)                    

(8,637)                      Shown as Short Term Liability on Balance Sheet (10,125)                    

(7,670)                      Shown as Long Term Liability on Balance Sheet (6,379)                      

(16,307)                    (16,504)                    

Insurance 

Excess (1)

Employment 

Related (2)

Capital 

Expenditure (3)

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

At 31 March 2012 (264)                                       -                    (581) (845)                 

Additional Provisions Made                  (106) (1,066)              -                   (1,172)              

Utilised during the year 121                  647                  197                  965                  

Unused amounts reversed 3                      -                   -                   3                      

At 31 March 2013 (246)                 (419)                 (384)                 (1,049)              



105 

 

Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 14: Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 

 

Par(cipa(on in the Pension Scheme 

 

The ITA and Nexus both par&cipate in the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund (the Fund) administered 

locally by South Tyneside Council, which is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). 

This is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority and employees 

pay contribu&ons into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabili&es with 

investment assets.  

 

In addi&on, there are arrangements for the award of discre&onary post re&rement benefits upon 

early re&rement - this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabili&es are 

recognised when awards are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet 

these pension liabili&es, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension payments as they 

eventually fall due.  

 

In 2012/13, the pension deficits for both the ITA and Nexus have increased as a result of a change 

in the discount rates used by the actuaries in the calcula&on of the present value of the future 

payments required, from 4.6% at 31 March 2012 to 4.1% at 31 March 2013. A lower discount rate 

results in a higher present value being placed on the future cashflows, and therefore a higher 

liability overall.  

 

Principal Mortality and Financial Assump(ons 

 

The principal assump&ons used by the actuary are: 

 

 

ITA Nexus ITA Nexus ITA Nexus ITA Nexus

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

Men (years) 21.6 21.6 21.7 21.7 21.6 21.6 21.7 21.7

Women (years) 23.8 23.8 23.9 23.9 23.8 23.8 23.9 23.9

Financial assumptions:

RPI Inflation 3.2% 3.5% 3.3% 3.6% 3.2% 3.4% 3.3% 3.6%

CPI Inflation 2.2% 2.5% 2.4% 2.7% 2.2% 2.4% 2.4% 2.7%

Rate of increase in salaries 3.7% 5.0% 3.8% 4.6% n/a n/a n/a n/a

Rate of increase in pensions 2.2% 2.5% 2.4% 2.7% 2.2% 2.4% 2.4% 2.7%

Rate for discounting scheme 

liabilities 4.6% 4.7% 4.1% 4.3% 4.6% 4.6% 4.1% 4.3%

2011/12 2012/13

Local Government Pension 

Scheme

Discretionary Benefits

2011/12 2012/13
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 14 (Con(nued) 

 

Expected Return on Assets 

 

The approximate split of assets for the Fund as a whole (based on data supplied by the Fund 

Administering Authority) is shown in the table below. Also shown are the assumed rates of return 

adopted by the Employer for the purposes of IAS 19.  

 

Summary of Funded and Unfunded Liabili(es 

 

Reconcilia(on of Funded Status to Balance Sheet 

 

 

Long-term 

expected rate of 

return (% p.a.)

Asset split (%) Long-term 

expected rate of 

return (% p.a.)

Asset split (%)

Equities 8.1 68.5                    7.8 68.0                    

Property 7.6 9.2                      7.3 9.0                      

Government Bonds 3.1 7.1                      2.8 7.0                      

Corporate Bonds 3.7 11.6                    3.8 11.0                    

Cash 1.8 1.9                      0.9 1.6                      

Other 8.1 1.7                      7.8 3.4                      

Total 7.1 100.0                  6.9 100.0                  

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

ITA Nexus Group ITA Nexus Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Funded Benefits (7,280)       (53,340)     (60,620)     (5,830)       (49,960)     (55,790)     

Unfunded Benefits (970)          (5,140)       (6,110)       (900)          (5,230)       (6,130)       

Net pension liability (8,250)       (58,480)     (66,730)     (6,730)       (55,190)     (61,920)     

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

ITA Nexus Group ITA Nexus Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

22,800    136,240  159,040  Fair value of assets 24,990    154,540  179,530  

(28,630)   (186,200) (214,830) Present value of funded defined 

benefit obligation

(32,270)   (207,880) (240,150) 

(5,830)     (49,960)   (55,790)   Pension liability recognised on 

Balance Sheet

(7,280)     (53,340)   (60,620)   

31 March 2012 31 March 2013
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 14 (Con(nued) 

 

Changes to the present value of defined benefit obliga(on during accoun(ng period 

 

Charges to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

 

Analysis of Amounts Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

 

 

 

 

 

ITA Nexus Group ITA Nexus Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(26,130)   (165,140) (191,270) Opening defined benefit 

obligation

(28,630)   (186,200) (214,830) 

-          (2,980)     (2,980)     Current service cost (10)          (3,510)     (3,520)     

(1,410)     (9,000)     (10,410)   Interest cost (1,290)     (8,700)     (9,990)     

-          (1,040)     (1,040)     Contribution by participants -          (1,060)     (1,060)     

(2,220)     (15,040)   (17,260)   Actuarial gains /(losses) on 

liabilities

(3,800)     (15,040)   (18,840)   

1,130      7,110      8,240      Net benefits paid out 1,460      6,630      8,090      

-          (110)        (110)        Past service cost -          -          -          

(28,630)   (186,200) (214,830) Closing defined benefit 

obligation

(32,270)   (207,880) (240,150) 

2011/12 2012/13

ITA Nexus Group ITA Nexus Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

-          2,980 2,980 Current service cost -          3,510 3,510

-          110 110 Past service cost 10 -          10

1,410 9,000 10,410 Interest cost 1,290 8,700 9,990

(1,710) (10,100) (11,810) Expected return on assets (1,590) (9,640) (11,230)

(300) 1,990 1,690 Expense recognised (290) 2,570 2,280

2012/132011/12

ITA Nexus Group ITA Nexus Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(3,540) (22,880) (26,420) Total actuarial losses (2,670) (8,240) (10,910)

-          -          -          Adjustment in respect of 

paragraph 58

-          -          -          

(3,540) (22,880) (26,420) Total gains losses (2,670) (8,240) (10,910)

2011/12 2012/13
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 14 (Con(nued) 

 

Changes to the fair value of assets during the accoun(ng period 

 

Actual return on assets 

 

History of asset values, present value of defined benefit obliga(on and surplus/deficit 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITA Nexus Group ITA Nexus Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

22,650    132,800  155,450  Opening fair value of assets 22,800    136,240  159,040  

1,710      10,100    11,810    Expected return on assets 1,590      9,640      11,230    

(1,320)     (7,840)     (9,160)     Actuarial gains / (losses) on 

assets

1,130      6,800      7,930      

890         7,250      8,140      Contributions by the employer 930         7,430      8,360      

-          1,040      1,040      Contributions by the participants -          1,060      1,060      

(1,130)     (7,110)     (8,240)     Net benefits paid out (1,460)     (6,630)     (8,090)     

22,800    136,240  159,040  Closing fair value of assets 24,990    154,540  179,530  

2011/12 2012/13

ITA Nexus Group ITA Nexus Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

1,710      10,100    11,810    Expected return on assets 1,590      9,640      11,230    

(1,320)     (7,840)     (9,160)     Actuarial gain / (loss) on assets 1,130      6,800      7,930      

390         2,260      2,650      Actual return on assets 2,720      16,440    19,160    

2011/12 2012/13

Group Group Group Group Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fair value of assets 179,530    159,040    155,450    188,130    132,700    

Present value of liabilities (240,150)   (214,830)   (191,270)   (275,390)   (201,800)   

Deficit (60,620)     (55,790)     (35,820)     (87,260)     (69,100)     

31 March 

2013

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2012

31 March 

2011

31 March 

2009
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 14 (Con(nued) - Unfunded Benefits 

 

Reconcilia(on of Balance Sheet 

 

Charges to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

 

Analysis of amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Changes to the present value of unfunded defined benefit obliga(on during the accoun(ng 

period 

ITA Nexus Group ITA Nexus Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(900)        (5,230)     (6,130)     Present value of unfunded 

defined benefit obligation

(970)        (5,140)     (6,110)     

(900)        (5,230)     (6,130)     Pension liability recognised on 

Balance Sheet

(970)        (5,140)     (6,110)     

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

ITA Nexus Group ITA Nexus Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

-          -          -          Current service cost -          -          -          

40           280         320         Interest cost 40           230         270         

40           280         320         Expense recognised 40           230         270         

2012/132011/12

ITA Nexus Group ITA Nexus Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(120) (160) (280) Total actuarial gains / (losses) (80) (160) (240)

(120) (160) (280) Total gains / (losses) (80) (160) (240)

2011/12 2012/13

ITA Nexus Group ITA Nexus Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(790)        (5,270)     (6,060)     Opening defined benefit 

obligation

(900)        (5,230)     (6,130)     

(40)          (280)        (320)        Interest cost (40)          (230)        (270)        

(120)        (160)        (280)        Actuarial gains / (losses) on 

liabilities

(80)          (160)        (240)        

50           480         530         Net benefits paid out 50           480         530         

(900)        (5,230)     (6,130)     Closing defined benefit 

obligation

(970)        (5,140)     (6,110)     

2011/12 2012/13
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 14 (Con(nued) - Unfunded Benefits 

 

History of present value of liabili(es and deficit 

 

Group Note 15: Deferred Tax Liability 

 

Deferred Taxa&on in the Group Accounts relates wholly to Nexus.  

 

The Balance Sheet figure comprises:  

 

Group Note 16: Usable Reserves 

 

Group Note 17: Unusable Reserves 

 

 

Details of movements on the Revalua&on Reserve, Capital Adjustment Account and Financial 

Instruments Adjustment Account are shown on p.55-57 of the ITA single en&ty accounts. These 

reserves relate to the ITA only.  

 

Group Group Group Group Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Present value of liabilities (6,110)       (6,130)       (6,060)       (6,680)       (7,770)       

Deficit (6,110)       (6,130)       (6,060)       (6,680)       (7,770)       

31 March 

2013

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2012

31 March 

2011

31 March 

2009

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

(5,312)                      Excess of Capital Allowances over depreciation (5,049)                      

(1,557)                      Roll over relief on capital gains (1,492)                      

127                          Other timing differences 127                          

1,565                       Tax effect of losses 1,142                       

(5,177)                      (5,272)                      

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

(2,519)                      ITA General Fund (2,382)                      

(41,757)                    Tyne Tunnels General Fund (40,477)                    

(14,357)                    Metro Reinvigoration Reserve (12,325)                    

(17,737)                    Nexus Revenue Reserves (15,838)                    

(17,761)                    Nexus Capital Reserves (20,209)                    

(94,131)                    Total Usable Reserves (91,231)                    
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 17 (Con(nued) 

 

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

41,887                      Balance at 1 April 61,920                      

26,700                      Actuarial (gains) or losses on pensions assets and 

liabilities

11,150                      

(1,080)                      Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits 

debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement 

2,550                        

(5,587)                      Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments 

to pensioners payable in the year

(8,890)                      

61,920                      Balance at 31 March 66,730                      

Nexus Grant Deferred Account:

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(314,638)                  Balance at 1 April (343,075)                  

12,829                      Capital Grants Released 15,700                      

(41,266)                    Capital Grants Applied (48,077)                    

(343,075)                  Balance at 31 March (375,452)                  

Nexus Unusable Capital Reserve:

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(45,070)                    Balance at 1 April (43,006)                    

40                             Adjustment -                           

(1,053)                      Additions -                           

3,117                        Depreciation 2,449                        

(42,966)                    Balance at 31 March (40,557)                    

 Pensions Reserve:  

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000

(11,167)                    Revaluation Reserve (10,290)                    

(55,669)                    Capital Adjustment Account (60,397)                    

243                          Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 171                          

61,920                     Pensions Reserve 66,730                     

(343,074)                  Nexus Grant Deferred Account (375,452)                  

(43,006)                    Nexus Unusable Capital Reserve (40,557)                    

(390,753)                  Total Unusable Reserves (419,795)                  
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 18: Cash Flow Statement - Opera(ng Ac(vi(es 

 

The cash flows for opera&ng ac&vi&es includes the following items rela&ng to interest paid and 

received:  

 

 

Group Note 19: Cash Flow Statement - Adjustments to Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services for non-cash movements and items that are inves(ng and financing ac(vi(es 

 

 

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

1,981                       Interest received 1,994                       

(8,830)                      Interest paid (9,502)                      

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(41,957)                    Surplus or deficit on the provision of services (37,387)                    

 Adjustments to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 

Services for Non-Cash Movements 

(21,986)                    Depreciation (24,438)                    

(2,626)                      Impairment and Downward Valuations

5                              Gain on disposal of non-current assets (574)                         

4,300                       (Increase) / Decrease in Creditors (12,159)                    

6,328                       Increase / (Decrease) in Debtors 6,562                       

(3)                             Increase / Decrease in Inventories (296)                         

6,667                       Movement in Pension Liability 6,340                       

-                            Carrying amount of long term and short term 

investments sold 

5,627                        Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or 

deficit on the provision of services 

5,109                       

(1,688)                      (19,456)                    

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or 

deficit on the provision of services that are investing 

and financing activities

51,721                      Capital grants credited to surplus / deficit on provision 

of services 

57,846                     

(1,704)                       Other adjustments for items that are financing or 

investing activities 

(1,307)                      

50,017                     56,539                     

6,372                       Net cash flow from operating activities (304)                         
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Group Notes to the Accounts 

 

Group Note 20: Cash Flow Statement - Cash Flows from Inves(ng Ac(vi(es 

 

 

 

Group Note 21: Cash Flow Statement - Cash Flows from Financing Ac(vi(es 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

(89,000)                    Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing -                           

(2,277)                      Other receipts from financing activities -                           

36,418                     Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 2,781                       

4,099                       Other payments for financing activities 1,370                       

(50,760)                    Net cash flows from financing activities 4,151                       

Total Total

2011/12 2012/13

£000 £000

88,152                     Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment

property and intangible assets

49,649                     

53,000                     Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 65,000                     

101                          Other payments for investing activities -                           

-                           Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and 

equipment, investment property and intangible assets

(3)                             

(30,106)                    Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (70,000)                    

(60,895)                    Other receipts from investing activities (54,449)                    

50,252                     Net cash flows from investing activities (9,803)                      
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Glossary of Terms 

 

Abbrevia&ons The symbol “k” following a figure represents £ thousand. 

The symbol “m” following  a figure represents £ million.  

Accruals Income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or 

incurred, not as money is received or paid. 

Actuarial gains or losses 

(pensions) 

For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial 

deficits or surpluses that arise either because events have not 

coincided with the actuarial assump&ons made for the last 

valua&on (experience gains or losses) or the actuarial assump&ons 

themselves have changed.  

Amor&se To write off gradually and systema&cally a given amount of money 

within a specific number of &me periods.  

Assets Items of worth which are measurable in terms of money.  

Assets Held for Sale Those assets, primarily long-term assets, that the Authority wishes 

to dispose of through sale to others.  

Balances The total level of surplus funds the Authority has accumulated over 

the years.  

Budgets A statement of the Authority’s forecast expenditure, that is, net 

revenue expenditure for the year. 

Capital Expenditure Expenditure on the acquisi&on of a fixed asset or expenditure 

which adds to and not merely maintains the value of an exis&ng 

fixed asset. 

Capital Adjustment Account The account accumulates (on the debit side) the write down of the 

historical cost of fixed assets as they are consumed by deprecia&on 

and impairments or wriKen off on disposal. It accumulates (on the 

credit side) the resources that have been set aside to finance 

capital expenditure. The same process applies to capital 

expenditure that is only capital by statutory defini&on (revenue 

expenditure funded from capital under statute). The balance on 

the account represents &ming differences between the amount of 

the historical cost of fixed assets that has been consumed and the 

amount that has been financed in accordance with statutory 

requirements.  

Capital Receipts Monies received from the disposal of land and other fixed assets, 

and from the repayment of grants and loans made by the 

Authority.  

Code of Prac&ce on Local 

Authority Accoun&ng in the 

UK 

The Code specifies the principles and prac&ces of accoun&ng to 

give a “true and fair” view of the financial posi&on and transac&ons 

of a local authority 

Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Account 

This account summarises the resources that have been generated 

and consumed in providing services and managing the Authority 

during the financial year.  
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Glossary of Terms 

Consistency The principle that the accoun&ng treatment of like items within an 

accoun&ng period and from one period to the next is the same.  

Con&ngent Asset A con&ngent asset is a possible asset arising from past events 

whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or 

more uncertain future events not wholly within the Authority’s 

control.  

Con&ngent Liability A con&ngent liability is either (i) a possible obliga&on arising from 

past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 

within the Authority’s control, or (ii) a present obliga&on from past 

events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits 

will be required or the amount of the obliga&on cannot be 

measured with sufficient reliability.  

Con&ngent Rent The por&on of the lease payments that is not fixed in amount but is 

based on the future amount of a factor that changes other than 

with the passage of &me, e.g. future price indices, future market 

rates of interest. 

Corporate and Democra&c 

Core 

The corporate and democra&c core comprises all ac&vi&es which 

local authori&es engage in specifically because they are elected, 

mul&-purpose authori&es.  

Creditors An amount owed by the Authority for work done, goods received 

or services rendered, but for which payment has not been made.  

Current Service Cost 

(Pensions) 

The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s 

liabili&es expected to arise from employee service in the current 

period.  

Curtailment (Pensions) For a defined benefit pension scheme an event that reduces the 

expected years of future service of present employees or reduces 

for a number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for 

some or all of their future service. Examples include termina&on of 

employee’s service through redundancy or amendment of the 

terms affec&ng future benefits.  

Debtors Monies owed to the Authority but not received at the balance 

sheet date.  

Defined Benefit Scheme 

(Pensions) 

A pension or other re&rement scheme other than a defined 

contribu&on scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits 

independently of the contribu&ons payable, and the benefits are 

not directly related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme 

may be funded or unfunded.  

Earmarked Reserve The measure of the wearing out, consump&on or other reduc&on 

in the useful economic life of an asset.  

Emoluments Payments received in cash and benefits for employment. 
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Glossary of Terms 

 

Events aGer the Balance 

Sheet Date 

Events aGer the balance sheet date are those events, favourable 

and unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet date and 

the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.  

Expected Rate of Return on 

Pension Assets 

This is an actuarially calculated es&mate of the return on the 

scheme’s investment assets during the year.  

Fair Value The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be 

exchanged in an arm’s length transac&on less, where applicable, 

any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of the assets.  

Fees and Charges Income arising from the provision of services.  

Finance Lease A lease that transfers substan&ally all of the risks and rewards of 

ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee. The payments usually 

cover the full cost of the asset together with a return for the cost of 

finance.  

Financial Instrument Document (such as a cheque, draG, bond, share, bill of exchange, 

futures or op&ons contract) that has a monetary value or evidences 

a legally enforceable (binding) agreement between two or more 

par&es regarding a right to payment of money.  

Financial Instruments 

Adjustment Account 

The reserve records the accumulated difference between the 

financing costs included in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Account and the accumulated financing costs required 

in accordance with regula&ons to be charged to the General Fund 

Balance.  

General Fund The total services of the Authority, the net cost of which is met by 

the levy, Government Grants and toll income. 

Going Concern The concept that the Authority will remain in opera&onal existence 

for the foreseeable future, in par&cular that the revenue accounts 

and balance sheet assume no inten&on to curtail significantly the 

scale of opera&ons.  

Impairment A reduc&on in the value of a fixed asset below its carrying amount 

on the balance sheet resul&ng from causes such as obsolescence or 

physical damage.  

Intangible Assets An asset that is not physical in nature, e.g. soGware licenses.  

Interest Cost (Pensions) For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the 

period in the present value of the scheme liabili&es because the 

benefits are one period closer to seKlement. 

Investment Proper&es Interest in land and buildings where construc&on work and 

development has been completed and the asset is held for its 

investment poten&al, any rental income being nego&ated at arms 

length. 

Liabili&es Any amounts owed to individuals or organisa&ons which will have 

to be paid at some &me in the future. 
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Liquid Resources Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the 

Authority without disrup&ng its business and are either readily 

conver&ble to known amounts of cash at or close to the carrying 

amount or traded in an ac&ve market. 

Materiality An item is material if its omission, non-disclosure or misstatement 

in the financial statements could be expected to lead to a 

distor&on of the view given by the financial statements.  

Minimum Revenue Provision 

(MRP) 

An amount charged by the Authority to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Account, for debt redemp&on or for the discharge 

of other credit liabili&es. 

Movement in Reserves 

Statement 

The statement shows the movement in the year on the different 

reserves held by the Authority. 

Net Book Value The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet 

being the historical cost or current value less the cumula&ve 

amounts provided for deprecia&on.  

Net Debt The Authority’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources. 

Opera&ng Leases Leases other than a finance lease.  

Property, Plant and 

Equipment (PPE) 

Assets that yield benefits to the Authority and the services it 

provides for a period of more than one year. Examples include 

land, buildings and vehicles. 

Provisions These are sums set aside to meet liabili&es or losses which have 

been incurred but where the amount and/or &ming of such costs 

are uncertain.  

Prudence This accoun&ng concept requires that revenue is not an&cipated 

un&l realisa&on can be assessed with reasonable certainty. 

Provision is made for all known liabili&es whether the amount is 

certain or can only be es&mated in the light of informa&on 

available.  

Public Works Loan Board This is a Government agency which provides loans to local 

authori&es at favourable rates.  

Related Party Transac&ons A related party transac&on is the transfer of assets or liabili&es or 

the performance of service by, to or for a related party irrespec&ve 

of whether a charge is made. An example could be the purchase, 

sale, lease, rental or hire of assets between related par&es.  

Reserves These are sums set aside to meet future possible liabili&es where 

there is no certainty about whether or not these liabili&es will be 

incurred.  

Residual Value The net realisable value of an asset at the end of its useful life. 

Residual values are based on prices prevailing  at the date of the 

acquisi&on (or revalua&on) of the asset and do not take account of 

expected future price changes.  
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Revalua&on Reserve The reserve records the accumulated gains on the fixed assets held 

by the Authority arising from increases in value as a result of 

infla&on or other factors. 

Revenue Expenditure Expenditure on providing day-to-day services, for example 

employee cost and premises costs.  

Revenue Expenditure Funded 

from Capital Under Statute  

Expenditure which may  be properly incurred, but which does not 

result in an asset owned by the Authority.  

Unusable Reserves The Authority cannot use this category of reserves to provide 

services. Includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses 

(e.g. revalua&on reserve), where amounts would only become 

available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves 

that hold &ming differences shown in the Movement in Reserves 

Statement line “adjustments between accoun&ng basis and 

funding basis under regula&on”.  

Usable Reserves Those reserves that the Authority may use to provide services, 

subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any 

statutory limita&ons on their use.  

Useful Life The period over which the Authority will derive benefits from the 

use of a fixed asset. 
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Annual Governance Statement 2012/13 

 

SECTION 1: SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

 

The Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority (ITA) is responsible for ensuring that its 

business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is 

safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effec&vely. The ITA 

also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure con&nuous 

improvement in the way in which its func&ons are exercised, having regard to a combina&on of 

economy, efficiency and effec&veness. The ITA also has a general power of promo&ng well-being 

within its area that was introduced by the Local Transport Act 2008.  

 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the ITA is responsible for puPng in place proper 

arrangements (known as a Governance Framework) for: 

(i) The governance of our affairs and 

(ii) Facilita&ng the effec&ve exercise of our func&ons, including arrangements for the 

management of risk. 

 

In rela&on to (i) we have adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance (“Local Code”) which is 

consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government. A copy is available on our website at www.twita.gov.uk. 

 

The Local Code evidences our commitment to achieving good governance and demonstrates how 

we comply with the governance standards recommended by CIPFA. It has been updated and 

approved as part of this review.  

 

In addi&on to the Local Code, the authority’s financial management arrangements conform with 

the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer on 

Local Government (2010) as set out in the Applica&on Note to Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government: A Framework. 

 

In rela&on to (ii) the ITA has put in place a system of internal control designed to manage risk to a 

reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objec&ves and 

can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effec&veness. The system of 

internal control is based on an on-going process designed to: 

(a) Iden&fy and priori&se the risks to the achievement of our policies, aims and objec&ves; 

and 

(b) To evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised, the impact should they be 

realised, and to manage them efficiently, effec&vely and economically. 

 

SECTION 2: THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 

In addi&on to the above, the ITA’s Governance Framework comprises the systems and processes, 

culture and values, through which the ITA is directed and controlled and its ac&vi&es through 

which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the ITA to monitor the 

achievement of its strategic objec&ves and to consider whether those objec&ves have led to the 

delivery of appropriate, cost effec&ve services.  

 

The governance framework has been in place at the ITA for the year ended 31 March 2013, and up 
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to the date of the approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.  

 

This Annual Governance Statement explains how we have complied with the Code and also meets 

the requirements of Regula&on 4(3) of the Accounts and Audit Regula&ons 2011 which requires all 

relevant public bodies to prepare an annual governance statement.  

 

SECTION 3: THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 

The main features of our Governance Framework are described in our Local Code and are 

summarised below: 

 

CORE PRINCIPLE 1: FOCUSSING ON OUR PURPOSE AND OUTCOMES FOR RESIDENTS 

 

Iden�fying and communica�ng the ITA’s vision of its purpose and intended outcomes for 

residents and service users 

 

The ITA’s priori&es were set out in the Passenger Transport Policy Statement, published every 

three years. With the ITA having overall responsibility for the Tyne and Wear Local Transport Plan 

2011-2021, we have sought to include our vision and policies within our LTP. The LTP sets out the 

ITA’s policies, priori&es and implementa&on plan for ac&on in the coming years, and included 

significant consulta&on with residents during the development stage. We consulted with 

Members, residents and businesses during 2010 on the vision and objec&ves. This helped inform 

our adopted vision and objec&ves and a chapter of the finalised LTP documents is dedicated to 

outlining changes to the document post-consulta&on.  

 

There is a policy work programme enabling us to secure effec&ve and forward looking decisions 

while also being flexible enough to be able to react to emerging changes. This is strengthened by bi

-monthly policy seminars for Members.  

 

Reviewing the ITA’s vision and the implica�ons for its governance arrangements 

 

We are assisted by the work of our internal and external auditors, in helping to iden&fy strengths 

and weaknesses in our performance, governance and internal control.  

 

We have been working with colleagues in Nexus and across Tyne and Wear to implement the 

opportuni&es presented by the Local Transport Act 2008 and the transi&on to the Integrated 

Transport Authority.  

 

We con&nued to support the ITA informal working groups to help the ITA to discharge its broader 

remit. These are the LTP Working Group, the Equality and Diversity Working Group, the Bus 

Strategy Working Group and the Tyne Tunnels Working Group. We also con&nued to support the 

Metro Sub CommiKee, Standards CommiKee, Audit CommiKee and Scru&ny Advisory Group.  

 

The ITA has been closely involved in the review of transport governance across the Tyne and Wear 

City Region. This strengthened the role of the ITA in developing transport strategy and policy at the 

City Region level. More recently, the ITA has been working closely with the North East Local 

Enterprise Partnership on transport-related issues—including on the establishment of Local 

Transport Bodies to establish the devolu&on of future local major transport schemes from 2015 



125 

 

Annual Governance Statement 2012/13 

onwards.  

 

The roles of Standards CommiKee and Audit CommiKee have been further embedded over the last 

year.  

 

The Scru&ny Advisory Group has an agreed annual work programme which has been implemented. 

The Scru&ny Advisory Group moved from themed mee&ngs around na&onal policy goals to more 

&mely scru&ny of issues in the ITA’s own forward plan. Regular review enabled the commiKee to 

take account of the balance of the work programme, new and emerging issues, changing scru&ny 

priori&es and discussion at mee&ngs.  

 

Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in accordance with 

the ITA’s objec�ves and for ensuring that they represent the best use of resources 

 

We measure value for money through the annual financial planning process which reviews services 

and iden&fies specific ac&ons required to improvement value for money which are then built into 

our budget.  

 

In previous years, the ITA completed an annual value for money (VFM) self-assessment that was 

submiKed to our external auditors. This assessed how well we manage and use our financial 

resources in broad theme areas, considering Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE) as specified by the Audit 

Commission.  

 

The Audit Commission has revised the approach to the auditor’s local VFM work at certain types of 

body including integrated transport authori&es. Auditors now apply a lighter-touch approach to 

their local VFM work and will meet their VFM duty by: 

• Reviewing the annual governance statement 

• Reviewing the results of the work of other relevant regulatory bodies or inspectorates 

• Undertaking other local risk-based work as appropriate  

 

Performance against the capital programme is also monitored on a regular basis, with quarterly 

reports taken to the ITA. There is also regular monitoring of the Financial Strategy, with revenue 

budget monitoring reports to the ITA.  

 

Service level agreements with the Lead Authority (Newcastle City Council) are in place, and 

regularly monitored to ensure value for money is being achieved. These are reviewed and updated 

annually. 

 

Nexus provide a Business Intelligence report to ITA Members which highlights issues such as 

number of people using public transport, type of &cket purchased etc.   

 

The main non-financial performance repor&ng undertaken by the ITA relates to LTP3, which is the 

main strategy document of the ITA, covering all forms of transport in Tyne and Wear, and is 

underpinned by the first in a serious of three year delivery plans (2011-14) sePng out how the 

strategy will be put into effect at a local level.  

 

The LTP3 Delivery Plan Chapter 5 (Monitoring) sets out the Performance Management Framework, 

based on monitoring the 12 main policies iden&fied in the LTP3 strategy. Updated baseline 
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measurements and targets were reported to the ITA in May 2012 and are reviewed and monitored 

on a regular basis, with performance reported to the ITA and the ITA LTP Working Group.  

 

CORE PRINCIPLE 2: MEMBERS AND OFFICERS HAVE CLEARLY DEFINED ROLES AND 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

Defining and documen�ng the roles and responsibili�es of the ITA, scru�ny and officer func�ons, 

with clear delega�on arrangements and protocols for effec�ve communica�on 

 

The roles and responsibili&es of commiKees and working groups of the ITA are set out in their 

Terms of Reference.  

 

The responsibili&es of members and officers of the ITA in rela&on to the use of assets and 

resources are set out in the financial regula&ons of the ITA, which are part of the ITA cons&tu&on.  

 

There is a clear scheme of delega&on to officers.  

 

There is a code of conduct for members, to which all members sign up upon taking the Office. 

 

CORE PRINCIPLE 3: WE PROMOTE HIGH STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOUR 

 

Developing, communica�ng and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of 

behaviour for members and staff 

 

There is a Code of Conduct for Members and a Code of Conduct for Employees.  

 

The Standards CommiKee deals with issues of conduct and promotes high standards among 

officers and members.  

 

There is a Register of Interests and Registers of GiGs and Hospitality for both members and 

officers.  

 

CORE PRINCIPLE 4: TRANSPARENT DECISION MAKING SUBJECT TO SCRUTINY AND RISK 

MANAGEMENT 

 

Reviewing and upda�ng standing orders, standing financial instruc�ons, a scheme of delega�on 

and suppor�ng procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisions are taken and the 

processes and controls required to manage risks 

 

The ITA’s cons&tu&on and scheme of delega&on are reviewed annually in May. Officers undertook 

the annual review of the ITA’s corporate governance arrangements, to ensure that the relevant 

documents remain up to date, and reported to the ITA in May 2013.  

 

Policy and decision making is undertaken by the ITA and its commiKees. Officers from the ITA, the 

cons&tuent Councils and Nexus have developed transport policies for the Local Transport Plan 

(2011-2021). 

 

The ITA has developed and maintains an effec&ve scru&ny func&on which encourages construc&ve 



127 

 

Annual Governance Statement 2012/13 

challenge and enhances overall performance. The Scru&ny Advisory Group consists of members 

who are not ITA Members, so are able to provide independent scru&ny.  

 

The ITA has a Risk Management Framework in place and maintains a registers of its strategic risks 

as well as project risks related to the New Tyne Crossing Project. The ITA uses the risk 

management resources available within the Lead Authority as required.  

 

The ITA purchases appropriate levels of insurance to minimise financial risks, and self-insures 

wherever possible.  

 

Undertaking the core func�ons of an audit commi(ee, as iden�fied in CIPFA’s Audit 

Commi5ees—Prac(cal Guidance for Local Authori(es 

 

We have an established Audit CommiKee which is independent of the ITA and scru&ny func&ons. It 

includes an independent chair and independent members to whom training is provided.  

 

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regula�ons, internal policies and procedures, and 

that expenditure is lawful 

 

The Clerk, Deputy Clerk & Treasurer (S73 of the 1985 Act), Monitoring Officer, Head of Democra&c 

Services and other senior managers are responsible for advising the ITA and associated 

commiKees on legal, financial and other procedures and policy considera&ons.  

 

The ITA is subject to internal and external audit and inspec&on regimes. The ITA has an internal 

audit service provided by the Lead Authority.  

 

The ITA also has a Standards CommiKee and an Audit CommiKee, whose terms of reference 

ensure probity and further scru&ny of ITA ac&vi&es.  

 

Whistle-blowing and for receiving and inves�ga�ng complaints from the public 

 

The ITA has an agreed whistle-blowing policy which is kept up to date and reviewed by Standards 

CommiKee. The policy is available via the ITA website.  

 

There is a corporate complaints procedure in place via the Lead Authority, with Nexus having 

separate procedures in place for managing complaints.  

 

CORE PRINCIPLE 5: DEVELOPING THE CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY OF MEMBERS TO BE EFFECTIVE 

 

Iden�fying the development needs of members and senior officers in rela�on to their strategic 

roles, supported by appropriate training 

 

The ITA provides members with regular training and there is induc&on training for new members. 

The ITA also holds a number of policy seminars with Nexus throughout the year to enhance 

member training and understanding.  

 

ITA members also undertake site visits where they are able to see progress in ac&on at first hand. 

For example, site visits have taken place to see the Tyne Tunnel, Haymarket Metro development, 
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Sunderland Sta&on development, the fiPng of new Metrocars as part of the reinvigora&on 

programme, and London Docklands Light Railway, to examine future genera&on light trains.  

 

ITA Members undertake an annual visit to examine relevant transport developments. The most 

recent visit was to view transport developments promoted by Transport for London and Docklands 

Light Railway. Schemes and policies considered included tendering for bus route networks, rolling 

out smartcard technology and future smartcard and technology developments in light rail 

opera&ons. These issues are all very relevant to the ITA in respect of future transport policy, 

including the planning of next genera&on Metro, the implementa&on and roll out of Ticke&ng & 

Ga&ng and the NESTI regional smartcard project and the delivery of beKer buses.  

 

CORE PRINCIPLE 6: ENGAGING WITH LOCAL PEOPLE AND STAKEHOLDERS 

 

Establishing clear channels of communica�on with all sec�ons of the community and other 

stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consulta�on 

 

Mee&ngs are held in public, and commiKee papers are available on the ITA’s website which is 

reviewed regularly. The ITA reviewed and refreshed its website during 2011/12 to ensure it was 

easier to use and with more up-to-date informa&on and has con&nued these improvements during 

2012/13. A feedback mechanism has been incorporated into the website to encourage users to get 

in touch on any subject.  

 

In line with the guidance on Local Transparency issued by the Department for Communi&es and 

Local Government, details of all external payments over £500 are published on the ITA’s website 

on a regular basis. Details of the members allowances scheme and amounts paid to members are 

also published.  

 

The consulta&on and involvement strategy sets out how Nexus on behalf of the ITA is engaging 

with its partners and stakeholders. The Nexus website encourages people to submit ques&ons and 

offer feedback.  

 

LTP3 was subject to a period of public consulta&on with feedback received through a myriad of 

channels including the website, social media, face-to-face interviews and leKers. Comments 

received were used to finalise the document.  

 

Incorpora�ng good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other group 

working as iden�fied by the Audit Commission's report on the governance of partnerships 

(Governing Partnerships: Bridging the Accountability Gap, Audit Commission, 2005) and 

reflec�ng on these in the Authority’s overall governance arrangements 

 

The ITA takes the lead on the development of the Local Transport Plan, in partnership with the 

other districts and Nexus.  

 

The ITA is now working closely with the North East Local Enterprise Partnership on transport 

issues. A Local Transport Body has been established, made up of the seven Leaders and Elected 

Mayor of the local authori&es in the North East. The ITA is a full vo&ng member of the Local 

Transport Body and is represented by the ITA Chairman. The officer group that provides support to 

the Local Transport Body is chaired by the Clerk of the ITA, in her role as the Chief Execu&ve for 
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transport in the north east.  

 

Partnership arrangements are in place for the Local Sustainable Transport Fund Schools Go 

Smarter and Go Smarter to Work programmes, which includes a Programme Board made up of 

representa&ves from each of the Tyne and Wear Districts, Nexus, the ITA and other delivery 

partners. A task-and-finish group has been set up for the delivery  of the BeKer Bus Areas 

programme, made up of officers from the ITA, Districts, Nexus and the major bus operators.  

 

Nexus establishes and monitors its objec&ves and performance through the Passenger Transport 

Policy Statement and its Annual Performance Plan and 3 year business plan.  

 

The ITA has a partnership with TT2 Ltd to operate the Tyne Tunnels under a 30 year concession 

contract.  

 

The NESTI partnership is made up from all local authori&es across the North East and Tees Valley in 

order to provide a smart &cke&ng transport infrastructure across the region. A collabora&on 

agreement between the ITA and other authori&es was entered into in October 2010 and runs for a 

five year period; the ITA leads on the development of this ini&a&ve with Nexus delivering it on 

behalf of partners. The ITA Policy lead chairs the NESTI Board mee&ngs.  

 

SECTION 4: ANNUAL REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 

The ITA has responsibility for conduc&ng, at least annually, a review of the effec&veness of the 

Governance Framework including the system of internal control. The review is led by the ITA 

Officer Working Group and the outcomes are reviewed by the Audit CommiKee before being 

considered and approved by the ITA. The review is informed by:  

(a) The execu&ve managers within the ITA who have responsibility for the development 

and maintenance of the governance environment 

(b) The views of our internal auditors which are reported to Audit CommiKee through 

regular progress reports and through the Annual Internal Audit Opinion 

(c) An annual review of the effec&veness of our Internal Audit arrangements (as required 

by Regula&on 6 of the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regula&ons 2006) 

(d) The views of our external auditors, regularly reported to Audit CommiKee through 

regular progress reports and through the Annual Audit and Inspec&on LeKer, Annual 

Governance Report and through regular mee&ngs with officers 

(e) The independent views of inspec&on agencies 

(f) The governance and internal control arrangements of our significant partnerships, 

contractors and group arrangements: 

• The Local Transport Plan Partnership (responsible for delivering the Local 

Transport Plan) 

• Nexus (the Passenger Transport Execu&ve, responsible for the planning, provision 

and promo&on of public transport). The ITA has appropriate representa&on 

within Nexus which provides an on-going source of assurance 

• TT2 Ltd (responsible for the construc&on and effec&ve opera&on of the Tyne 

Tunnels and the New Tyne Crossing) and internal arrangements in place to 

support and monitor the contract 

(g) The ITA’s Strategic Risk Register, which captures the most significant risks associated 

with the delivery of the ITA’s objec&ves 
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(h) The Lead Authority’s own annual review of its Governance Framework 

(i) The views of members through the on-going work of Audit CommiKee and the ITA 

(j) The work of the ITA Officer Working Group—this group consists of Lead Authority 

officers who meet monthly for agenda sePng purposes, to share informa&on and to 

monitor performance issues and governance arrangements 

 

SECTION 5: SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

 

The system of governance (including the system of internal control) can provide only reasonable 

and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transac&ons are authorised and 

properly recorded, that material errors or irregulari&es are either prevented or would be detected 

within a &mely period and that significant risks impac&ng on the achievement of the ITA’s 

objec&ves have been mi&gated.  

 

The review did not highlight any issues as serious weaknesses in governance or internal control 

during 2012/13. 

 

SECTION 6: SIGNIFICANT IMPROVEMENTS NEEDED TO GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

 

The purpose of the review is also to iden&fy issues that may need significant improvement but 

which do not cons&tute “significant weaknesses” in our governance and internal control 

arrangements.  

 

The review did not highlight any governance or internal control issues as requiring significant 

improvement during 2012/13. 

 

SECTION 7: CONCLUSION 

 

We consider the governance and internal control environment opera&ng during 2012/13 to 

provide reasonable and objec&ve assurance that any significant risks impac&ng on the 

achievement of our principal objec&ves will be iden&fied and ac&ons taken to avoid or mi&gate 

their impact.  

 

Systems are in place to con&nually review and improve the governance and internal control 

environment. 

 

The annual review has shown that arrangements are in place and opera&ng as planned.  

 

We have been advised on the implica&ons of the review by the ITA Officer Working Group.  
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Councillor David Wood 

Chair of the ITA 
Pat Ritchie 

Clerk to the ITA 

Paul Woods 

Treasurer to the ITA 
Date: Date:  Date: 
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of the Tyne & Wear Integrated 

Transport Authority 

Opinion on the Authority financial statements 

 

We have audited the financial statements of the Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport Authority for 

the year ended 31 March 2013 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial statements 

comprise the Authority and Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Authority and Group 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Authority and Group Balance Sheet, the 

Authority and Group Cash Flow Statement, and the Authority related notes 1 to 33, and the Group 

related notes 1 to 21. The financial repor&ng framework that has been applied in their prepara&on 

is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Prac&ce on Local Authority Accoun&ng in the 

United Kingdom 2012/13.  

 

This report is made solely to the members of the Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport Authority in 

accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in 

paragraph 48 of the Statement of Responsibili&es of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the 

Audit Commission in March 2010. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to 

the Authority those maKers we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no 

other purpose. To the fullest extent permiKed by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 

anyone other than the Authority, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions 

we have formed.  

 

 

Respec(ve responsibili(es of the Treasurer and auditor 

 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibili&es, the Treasurer is responsible for the 

prepara&on of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance 

with proper prac&ces as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Prac&ce on Local Authority 

Accoun&ng in the United Kingdom, and for being sa&sfied that they give a true and fair view. Our 

responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 

applicable law and Interna&onal Standards on Audi&ng (UK and Ireland). Those standards require 

us to comply with the Audi&ng Prac&ces Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

 

 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements  

 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 

material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether 

the accoun&ng policies are appropriate to the Authority and the Group’s circumstances and have 

been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accoun&ng 

es&mates made by the Authority and the Group; and the overall presenta&on of the financial 

statements. In addi&on, we read all the financial and non-financial informa&on in the Explanatory 

Foreword  and the Annual Report to iden&fy material inconsistencies with the audited financial 

statements. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we 

consider the implica&ons for our report. 

 

 

Opinion on financial statements 
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In our opinion the accoun&ng statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the financial posi&on of the Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport 

Authority as at 31 March 2013 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended;  

• give a true and fair view of the financial posi&on of the Group as at 31 March 2013 and of its 

expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Prac&ce on Local 

Authority Accoun&ng in the United Kingdom 2012/13. 

 

 

Opinion on other ma5ers 

 

In our opinion, the informa&on given in the Explanatory Foreword and the Annual Report for the 

financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 

statements. 

 

 

Ma5ers on which we report by excep(on 

 

We report to you if: 

• in our opinion the annual governance statement does not reflect compliance with ‘Delivering 

Good Governance in Local Government: a Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 

2007; 

• we issue a report in the public interest under sec&on 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998; 

• we designate under sec&on 11 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 any recommenda&on as 

one that requires the Authority to consider it at a public mee&ng and to decide what ac&on 

to take in response; or  

• we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Audit Commission Act 1998. 

We have nothing to report in these respects. 

 

 

Other ma5ers on which we are required to conclude 

We are required under Sec&on 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to sa&sfy ourselves that the 

Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effec&veness in its 

use of resources. We are also required by the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Prac&ce to report 

any maKers that prevent us being sa&sfied that the audited body has put in place such 

arrangements. 

We have undertaken our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Prac&ce and, having regard to 

the guidance issued by the Audit Commission in November 2012, we have considered the results 

of the following: 

• our review of the annual governance statement; 

• the work of other relevant regulatory bodies or inspectorates, to the extent the results of the 

work have an impact on our responsibili&es; and 

• our locally determined risk-based work as necessary. 

As a result, we have concluded that there are no maKers to report. 
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Delay in cer(fica(on of comple(on of the audit 

 

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit cer&ficate un&l we have completed the 

work necessary to issue our assurance statement in respect of the Authority’s Whole of 

Government Accounts consolida&on pack. We are sa&sfied that this work does not have a material 

effect on the financial statements or on our value for money conclusion. 

 

 

David Wilkinson FCA CF 

Engagement Lead 

For and on behalf of Deloi5e LLP 

Appointed Auditor 

Newcastle, United Kingdom 

27 September 2013 
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Issue of audit opinion on the financial statements 

 

In our audit report for the year ended 31 March 2013 issued on 27 September 2013 we reported 

that, in our opinion, the financial statements: 

 

• gave a true and fair view of the financial posi&on of Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport 

Authority as at 31 March 2013 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

and  

• had been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Prac&ce on Local 

Authority Accoun&ng in the United Kingdom 2012/13. 

 

Other ma5ers on which we are required to conclude 

 

In our audit report for the year ended 31 March 2013 issued on 27 September 2013, we reported 

that we had concluded that there were no maKers to report that prevent us being sa&sfied that 

the audited body had put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effec&veness in its use of resources.  

 

Cer(ficate 

 

In our report dated 27 September 2013, we explained that we could not formally conclude the 

audit on that date un&l we had completed the work necessary to issue our assurance statement in 

respect of the Authority’s Whole of Government Accounts consolida&on pack. We have now 

completed this work. No maKers have come to our aKen&on since that date that would have a 

material impact on the financial statements on which we gave an unqualified opinion and value for 

money conclusion.  

 

We cer&fy that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Tyne & Wear Integrated Transport 

Authority in accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of 

Audit Prac&ce issued by the Audit Commission.  

 

 

 

David Wilkinson FCA CF 

Engagement Lead 

For and on behalf of Deloi5e LLP 

Appointed Auditor 
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